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Universal Investment Bank AD, Skopje

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Universal Investment Bank AD,
Skopje (the “Bank”) which comprise of the Statement of financial position as at 31
December 2012 and the Statement of comprehensive income, the Statement of changes in
equity and the Statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes, included on pages 3 to 57.

Management's responsibility for the financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, and for such
internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatements. An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of matertal misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the
auditor considers internal control relevant to the Bank’s preparation and fair presentation of
the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Bank’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accoun ting estimates made by management, as well
as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

Chartered Accountants
Membser firm of Grant Thornton Intermational Lid



Grant Thornton

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion
In our opinion the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Bank as at 31 December 2012, and its financial performance and its cash

flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards.

Other matter

The financial statements of the Bank as of and for the year ended 31 December 2011 were

audited by another auditor who expressed an unmodified opinion on those statements on
23 April 2012.

Grant Thornton,

Skopije,
8 March 2013

Chartered Accountants
Member firm of Grant Thornton Intemational Lid
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Universal Investment Bank AD, Skopje

Financial statements
31 December 2012

Statement of comprehensive income

(In 000 MKD)

For the year ending

31 December

Notes 2012 2011
Interest income 791,864 795,295
Interest (expense) 363,208) (398,003)
Net interest income 5 428,656 397,292
Fee and commission income 230,686 215,609
Fee and commission (expense) (105,604) (87,627)
Net fee and commission income 6 125,082 127,982
Net foreign exchange gains 26,195 27,802
Other operating income 7 49,113 17,776
Operating income 629,046 570,852
Release of impairment provision/ Impairment (losses)
on financial assets, net 8 4,602 (26,104)
Personnel expenses 9 (216,325) (207,845)
Amortization and depreciation 18,19 (54,176) (37,074)
Other operating expenses 10 (268,916) (251,174)
Operating (expenses) (534,815) (522,197)
Profit before tax 94,231 48,655
Income tax (expense) 11 (897) (1,296)
Net profit for the year 93,334 47,359
Other comprehensive income
Other comprehensive income for the year - -
Total comprehensive income for the year 93,334 47,359
Earnings per share .
Basic and diluted earnings per share (in Denars) 12 176 89

See the accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements



Universal Investment Bank AD, Skopje 4

Financial statements
31 December 2012

Statement of financial position

(In 000 MKD)
As at 31 December
Notes 2012 2011
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 13 1,916,273 1,741,041
Loans and advances to banks 14 639,967 396,337
Loans and advances to customers 15 6,612,123 6,291,937
Investment securities 16 1,020,564 1,291,341
Foreclosed assets 17 245,828 69,526
Intangible assets 18 147,045 133,554
Property and equipment 19 524,400 536,659
Other receivables 20 84,853 89,850
Total assets 11,191,053 10,550,245
Liabilities
Due to banks 21 227,041 147,361
Due to customers 22 9,249,189 8,880,836
Borrowings 23 282,941 188,804
Subordinated liabilities 24 272,420 272,442
Provisions and special reserve 25 1,830 2,874
Other liabilities 26 78,232 71,653
Total liabilities _ 10,111,653 9,563,970
Equity and reserves
Share capital 27 545,987 545,987
Share premium 510,387 510,387
Reserves 57,5653 57,5653
Accumulated (losses) (34,527) (127,652)
f Total equity and reserves 1,079,400 986,275
v | Total liabilities, equity and reserves 11,191,053 10,550,245
g Commitments and contingencies 28 343,953 349,738
=

These financial statements have been authorized by the Bank’s Supervisory Boatrd on 8
March 2013. o

18]

Signed on behalf of Board of Directors by:

{t

L / ///

/ [ : 5 - /
= [ phLect LN B /
L “Kosta Mitrovski Svet?éar PopOL Delco Krstev
= Chairman of the Managing Member of the Managing Member of the Managing
,__.__ Board, Executive Director Board, Executive Director Board, Executive Director
=t

See the accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements
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Universal Investment Bank AD, Skopje 5
Financial statements
31 December 2012
Statement of changes in equity

Share Share  Revaluation Other Retained
(In 000 MKD) capital premium reserves reserves earnings Total equity
At 01 January 2011 545,987 510,387 {2,615) 60,168 {175,011) 938,916
Transactions with owners - - - - - -
Profit for the year - - - - 47,359 47,359
Other comprehensive income - - - - - -
Total comprehensive income - - 2 - 47,359 47,359
At 31 December 2011 545,987 510,387 {2,615) 60,168 (127,652) 986,275
At 01 January 2012 545,987 510,387 (2,615) 60,168 (127,652) 986,275
Correction (Note 20) - - - - (209) (209)
At 01 January 2012 restated 545,987 510,387 (2,615) 60,168 (127,861) 986,066
Transactions with owners - - - - - -
Profit for the year - - - - 93,334 93,334
Other comprehensive income - - - - - =
Total comprehensive income - - - - 93,334 93,334
At 31 December 2012 545,987 510,387 (2,615) 60,168 (34,527) 1,079,400

See the accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements
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Universal Investment Bank AD, Skopje 6
Financial statements
31 December 2012
Statement of cash flows
(In 000 MKD)
Year ended 31 December
Notes 2012 2011
Operating activities
Profit before taxation 94,231 48,655
Adjustment for:
Amortization and depreciation 54,176 37,074
Release of impairment provision/ Impairment (losses) on financial
assets, net (4,602) 26,104
Impairment losses on foreclosed assets 1,604 -
Release of impairment provision and special reserve, net (1,044) (3,059)
Dividend income (2,083) (362)
(Gains) from property and equipment sold - (268)
(Gain) from foreclosed assets sold (551) -
Loss from intangible assets sold - 279
Interest income (791,864) (795,295)
Interest expense 363,208 398,003
Other corrections 22 (21)
(Loss) before changes in operating assets and liabilities (286,903) (288,890)
Changes in operating assets and liabilities
Loans and advances to banks (242,997) 51,245
Obligatory reserves in foreign currency 30,686 (14,521)
Loans and advances to customers (314,801) (477,147)
Foreclosed assets (177,355) (25,449)
Other receivables (49,778) (5,610)
Due to banks 77,369 2,949
Due to customers 342 885 438,845
Other liabilities 6,579 685
(Loss) after changes in operating assets and liabilities (614,315) (317,893)
Proceeds from interest 749,620 755,765
Interests (paid) (335,314) (332,123)
Income tax (paid) (3,265) (1,4486)
{203,274) 104,303
Investment activities
(Purchase) of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets, net (55,408) (304,372)
(Purchase) / Sale of investment securities, net 314,109 (378,041)
Other inflows from investment activities 1,283 362
259,984 (682,051)
Financial activities
Proceeds from loans 170,003 294,660
(Repayment of) loans (75,981) (236,863)
94,022 57,797
Net change in cash and cash equivalents 150,732 (519,951)
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of the year 1,281,820 1,801,871
Cash and cash equivalents, end of the year 13 1,432,652 1,281,920

See the accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements
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Universal Investment Bank AD, Skopje 7

Notes to the Financial Statements

1 General information
Universal Investment Bank, Skopje (hereinafter “the Bank”) is a Shareholding Company
mcorporated in the Republic of Macedonia. The address of its registered head office is:

St. Maksim Gorki 6, 1000 Skopje, Republic of Macedonia.

The Bank 1s licensed to perform all banking activities in accordance with the law. The main activities
include commercial lending, receiving of deposits, payment operation services in the country and
abroad, foreign exchange deals, trust activities and other services.

The Bank’s shares are quoted at Macedonian Stock Exchange, at the regular market for companies
with special reporting obligations. The quotation code is the following:

Code of shares ISIN
UNI (ordinary share) MKBLBA101011
UNI (preference shares) MKBLBA120011

The total number of employees in the Bank as at 31 December 2012 and 2011 is 392 employees,
and 377 employees, respectively.

2 Accounting policies

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are set
out below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless stated
otherwise,

21 Basis for preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS) that were issued by the International Accounting Standards Board
(IASB). Financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the concept of historical cost
convention except for securities available for sale that are measured at fair value. Bases for

measuring each kind of asset, liability, income and expense are disclosed further within this Note.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requites the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires the Bank’s management to exercise judgment in the process of
applying the Bank’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgment or
complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements are
disclosed in Note 4: Critical accounting estimates and judgments.

The financial statements have been prepared as at and for the years ended 31 December 2012 and
2011. The tinancial statements are presented in Macedonian Denar (“MKD”), which is the Bank’s
functional currency Current and comparative data stated in these financial statements are expressed
in Denar thousands. Where necessary, comparative figures have been adjusted to conform to the
changes in presentation for the current year.
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Universal Investment Bank AD, Skopje

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
Accounting policies (continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

a) Adoption of ‘Presentation of Items of Other Comprehensive Income’ (Amendments to
IAS 1)

The Bank has adopted ‘Presentation of Ttems of Other Comprehensive Income’ (Amendments to
IAS 1). The Amendments to TAS 1 are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July
2012 and require entities to group items presented in other comprehensive income (OCI) into those
that, in accordance with other IFRSs, will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss and
those that will be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss when specific conditions are met. The
existing option to present items of OCI either before tax or net of tax remains unchanged; however,
if the items are presented before tax, then the Amendments to TAS 1 require the tax related to each
of the two groups of OCI to be shown separately.

b) Standards, amendments and interpretations to existing standards that are not yet
effective and have not been adopted early by the Bank
At the date of authorization of these financial statements, certain new standards, amendments and

interpretations to existing standards have been published by the IASB but are not yet effective, and
have not been adopted early by the Bank.

Management anticipates that all of the relevant pronouncements will be adopted in the Bank’s
accounting policies for the first period beginning after the effective date of the pronouncement.
Information on new standards, amendments and interpretations that are expected to be relevant to
the Bank’s financial statements is provided below. Certain other new standards and interpretations
have been issued but are not expected to have a material tmpact on the Bank’s financial statements.

IFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’ (IFRS 9)

The TASB aims to replace IAS 39 ‘Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement’ (IAS 39)
in its entirety with IFRS 9. To date, the chapters dealing with recognition, classification,
measurement and derecognition of financial assets and liabilities have been issued. These chapters
are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2015. Chapters dealing with
impairment methodology and hedge accounting are still being developed. Further, in November
2011, the IASB tentatively decided to consider making limited modifications to IFRS 9’s financial
asset classification model to addtess application issues. The Bank’s management has yet to assess
the impact of this new standard on the Bank’s consolidated financial statements. However,
Management does not expect to implement IFRS 9 until all of its chapters have been published and
they can comprehensively assess the impact of all changes.

Consolidation Standards

A package of new consolidation standards is effective for annual periods beginning or after 1

January 2013. Information on these new standards is presented below. Management has not yet

completed its assessment of the impact of these new and revised standards on the Bank’s
consolidated financial statements.

IFRS 10 ‘Consolidated Financial Statements’ (IFRS 10)
IFRS 10 supersedes [AS 27 ‘Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements’ (IAS 27) and SIC 12

‘Consolidation — Special Purpose Entities’. IFRS 10 revises the definition of control and provides
extensive new guidance on its application. These new requirements have the potential to affect

which of the Bank’s investees are considered to be subsidiaries and therefore change the scope of
consolidation. However, the requirements on consolidation procedutes, accounting for changes in
non-controlling interests and accounting for loss of control of a subsidiary remain the same.
Management’s provisional analysis is that IFRS 10 will not change the classification (as subsidiaries
or otherwise) of any of the Bank’s existing investees at 31 December 2012.
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Universal Investment Bank AD, Skopje 9

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
Accounting policies (continued)

Changes in accounting policies and disclosures (continued)

IIRS 171 Joint Arvangements’ (IFRS 11)

IFRS 11 supersedes IAS 31 ‘Interests in Joint Ventures’ (IAS 31). It aligns more closely the
accounting by the investors with their rights and obligations relating to the joint arrangement. In
addition, TAS 31’s option of using proportionate consolidation for joint ventures has been
eliminated. IFRS 11 now requires the use of the equity accounting method, which is currently used
for investments in associates.

IERS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities” (IFRS 12)

IFRS 12 integrates and makes consistent the disclosure requirements for various types of
investments, including unconsolidated structured entities. It introduces new disclosure requirements
about the risks to which an entity is exposed from its involvement with structured entities.

Transition guidance for IFRS 10, 11, 12

Subsequent to issuing the new standards the TASB made some changes to the transitional
provisions in IFRS 10, IFRS 11 and IFRS 12. The guidance confirms that the entity is not required
to apply IFRS 10 retrospectively in certain circumstances and clarifies the requirements to present
adjusted comparatives. The guidance also makes changes to IFRS 11 and IFRS 12 which provide
similar relief from the presentation or adjustment of comparative information for periods prior to
the immediately preceding period. Further, it provides additional relief by removing the requirement
to present comparatives for the disclosures relating to unconsolidated structured entities for any
petiod before the first annual period for which IFRS 12 is applied.

The new guidance is also effective for annual periods on ot after 1 January 2013.

Consequential amendments to IAS 27 Separate Financial Statements” (1AS 27) and LAS 28 Tuvestments in
Associates and Joint Ventures® (145 28)

IAS 27 now only addresses separate financial statements. IAS 28 brings investments in joint
ventures into its scope. However, IAS 28’ equity accounting methodology remains unchanged.

IFRS 13 ‘Fair Value Measurement’ (IFRS 13)

IFRS 13 clarifies the definition of fair value and provides related guidance and enhanced disclosures
about fair value measurements. It does not affect which items are required to be fair-valued. IFRS
13 applies prospectively for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013. Management is in
the process of reviewing its valuation methodologies for conformity with the new requirements and
has yet to complete its assessment of their impact on the Bank’s consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to IAS 19 ‘Employee Benefits’ (IAS 19 Amendments)

The TAS 19 Amendments include a number of targeted improvements th roughout the Standard.

The main changes relate to defined benefit plans. They: :

® eliminate the ‘corridor method’, requiring entities to recognize all actuarial gains and losses
arising in the reporting period

® changes the measurement and presentation of certain components of defined benefit cost

enhance the disclosure requirements, including information about the characteristics of defined

benefit plans and the risks that entities are exposed to through participation in them.

The IAS 19 Amendments are effective for annual periods begin ning on or after 1 January 2013 and
will apply retrospectively.

Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities (Amendments to IAS 32)

The Amendments to TAS 32 add application guidance to address inconsistencies in applying IAS
32’s criteria for offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities in the following two areas:

®  the meaning of ‘currently has a legally enforceable right of set-off

" that some gross settlement systems may be considered equivalent to net settlement.
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Universai Investment Bank AD, Skopje

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
Accounting policies (continued)

Changes in accounting policies and disclosures (continued)

The Amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014 and are
required to be applied retrospectively. Management does not anticipate a material impact on the
Bank’s consolidated financial statements from these Amendments.

Disclosures — Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

(Amendments to IFRS 7)

Qualitative and quantitative disclosures have been added to IFRS 7 ‘Financial Tnstruments:
Disclosures’ (IFRS 7) relating to gross and net amounts of recognized financial instruments that are
(a) set off in the statement of financial position and (b) subject to enforceable master netting
arrangements and similar agreements, even if not set off in the statement of financial position. The
Amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013 and
interim periods within those annual periods. The required disclosures should be provided
retrospectively. Management does not anticipate a material impact on the Bank’s consolidated
financial statements from these Amendments.

Annual Improvements 2009-2011 (the Annual Improvements)
The Annual Improvements 2009-2011 (the Annual Improvements) made several minor
amendments to a number of IFRSs. The amendments relevant to the Bank are summatized below:

Clarification of the requirements for opening statement of financial position:

® clarifies that the appropriate date for the opening statement of financial position is the
beginning of the preceding period (related notes are no longer required to be presented)
addresses comparative requirements for the opening statement of financial position when an
entity changes accounting policies or makes retrospective restatements or reclassifications, in
accordance with TAS 8.

Clarification of the requirements for comparative information provided beyond minimum
requirements:

= clarifies that additional financial statement information need not be presented in the form of a
complete set of financial statements for periods beyond the minimum requirements

requires that any additional information presented should be presented in accordance with
IFRS and the entity should present comparative information in the related notes for that
additional information.

Tax effect of distribution to holders of equity instruments:

®  addresses a perceived inconsistency between IAS 12 ‘Income Taxes’ (TAS 12) and TAS 32
‘Financial Instruments: Presentation’ (IAS 32) with regards to recognizing the consequences of
income tax relating to distributions to holders of an equity instrument and to transaction costs
of an equity transaction \

® clarifies that the intention of IAS 32 is to follow the requirements in IAS 12 for accounting for
income tax relating to distributions to holders of an equity instrument and to transaction costs
of an equity transaction.

Segment information for total assets and liabilities:
" clarifies that the total assets and liabilities for a particular reportable segment are required to be
disclosed if, and only if: (i) a measure of total assets or of total liabilities (or both) is regulatly

provided to the chief operating decision maker; (ii) there has been a material change from those

measures disclosed in the last annual financial statements for that reportable segment.

The Annual Improvements noted above are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2013. Management does not anticipate a material impact on the Bank’s consolidated
financial statements from these Amendments.
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Universal Investment Bank AD, Skopje

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
Accounting policies (continued)

2.3 Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to Macedonian Denars at the exchange rates at the
dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign cutrencies at the
teporting date are retranslated to Macedonian Denars at the spot exchange rate at that date. The
foreign currency gain or loss on monetary items is the difference between amortized cost in
Macedonian Denars at the beginning of the period, adjusted for effective interest and payments

during the period, and the amortized cost in foreign cutrency translated at the exchange rate at the
end of the period.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are measured at fair
value are retranslated to Macedonian Denars at the spot exchange rate at the date that the fair value

was determined. Foreign currency differences arising on retranslation are recognized in profit or
loss.

The foreign currencies the Bank deals with are predominantly Euro (EUR) and United States

Dollars (USD).The exchange rates used for translation at 31 December 2012 and 2011 were as
follows:

2012 2011
MKD MKD
1 EUR 61,5000 61,5050
1USD 46,6510 47,5346

2.4 Off-setting
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and reported in the Statement of financial position when

there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to
settle on a net basis, or realize the assets and settle the liability simultaneously.

2.5 Interest income and expenses

Interest income and expense are recognized in the profit or loss using the effective interest method.
The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments and
teceipts through the expected life of the financial asset or liability (o, where appropriate, a shorter
period) to the carrying amount of the financial asset or liability. The effective interest rate is
established on initial recognition of the financial asset and liability and is not revised subsequently.

The calculation of the effective interest rate includes all fees and points paid or received,
(transaction costs, and discounts or premiums) that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.
Transaction costs include incremental costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue
of a financial asset or liability.

Interest income and expense presented in the profit or loss include:

= interest on financial assets and liabilities at amortized cost on an effective interest rate basis;

interest on available-for-sale investment securities calculated on an effective interest rate
basis.
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Universal Investment Bank AD, Skopje 12

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
Accounting policies (continued)

2.6 Fees and commission income and expenses
Fees and commission income and expenses that are integral to the effective interest rate on a
financial asset or liability are included in the measurement of the effective interest rate.

Other fees and commission income, inchuding financia) services provided by the Bank in respect of
foreign currency settlements, guarantees, letters of credit, domestic and foreign payment operations
and other services, are recognized as the related services are performed. When a loan commitment

is not expected to result in the draw-down of a loan, loan commitment fees are recognized as an
income at the moment of payment.

Other fees and commission expenses relate mainly to financial service fees, which are expensed as
the setvices are received.

2.7 Dividends

Dividend income is recognized when the right to receive income is established. Dividends are

reflected as a component of net trading income, or dividend income based on the underlying.
classification of the equity instrument.

2.8 Lease payments made

Payments made under operating leases are recognized in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over

the term of the lease. Lease incentives received are recognized as an integral part of the total lease
expense, over the term of the lease.

2.9 Current and deferred income tax

Income tax at 10% rate is paid to non — deductible items for tax purposes adjusted for tax credit,
less recognized income, as well as on the distributed income for dividends to legal entities —
nonresidents and to individuals. Undistributed profit (retained earnings) is exempt of taxation.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying values for financial reporting
purposes. Currently enacted tax rates are used in determination of deferred income tax. Deferred
tax is charged or credited in the statement of comprehensive income, except when it relates to items
charged or credited directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax is also dealt with in equity.

Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can be utilized.

The Bank has not recognized any deferred tax assets or liability as at 31 December 2012 and 2011,

as there are no temporary differences existing at those dates.



Universal Investment Bank AD, Skopje

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
Accounting policies (continued)

210 Financial assets and liabilities

Recognition

The Bank initially recognizes loans and advances, deposits and borrowings on the date at which they
are originated at cost. Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognized on the trade
date at which the Bank commits to purchase or sell the asset. All other financial assets and liabilities
are initially recognized on the trade date at which the Bank becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

A financial asset or financial liability is initially measured at fair value plus (for an item not
subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss) transaction costs that are directly
attributable to its acquisition or issue.

Classification
The Bank classifies its financial assets into the following categories: loans and receivables, held to
maturity and available for sale (see accounting policies 2.12, 2.13 and 2.14).

Derecognition

The Bank derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
financial asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset in a transaction in which substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transfetred or in which the Bank
neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and it does not
retain control of the financial asset. Any interest in transferred financial assets that qualify for
derecognition that is created or retained by the Bank is recognized as a separate asset or liability in
the statement of financial position. On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the
carrying amount of the asset (or the carrying amount allocated to the portion of the asset
transferred), and the sum of (i) the consideration received (including any new asset obtained less any
new liability assumed) and (i) any cumulative gain or loss that had been recognized in other
comprehensive income is recognized in profit or loss.

In transactions in which the Bank neither retains nor transfers substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of a financial asset and it retains control over the asset, the Bank continues to
recognize the asset to the extent of its continuing involvement, determined by the extent to which it

is exposed to changes in the value of the transferred asset.

The Bank derecognizes a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or
cancelled or expire.

Amortized cost measurement

The amortized cost of a financial asset or liability is the amount at which the financial asset or
liability is measured at initial recognition, minus principal repayments, plus or minus the cumulative
amortization using the effective interest method of any difference between the initial amount
recognized and the maturity amount, minus any reduction for impairment.
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Universal Investment Bank AD, Skopje

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
Accounting policies (continued)

Financial assets and liabilities (continued)

Fair value measurement

Fair value can be assessed differently, depending on whether or not the asset or liability is traded in
an active market.

Active market: Fair valye

A financial asset is considered to be traded in an active market if the published prices ate readily and
regularly available from the Stock Exchange, dealers, brokers, over the counter, industry groups or
regulatory agencies and those prices represent the current and regular market transactions on
normal, commercial basis. The appropriate quoted market price for an asset held or a liability that is
to be issued is usually the current market (buying) price; for an asset that is about to be acquired or
a liability held it is the curtent selling price.

Absence of an active market: Valnation technigues

If a market for a financial instrument is not active, the Bank establishes fai. value using a valuation
technique in the following order:

- Application of information on negotiated prices for recent (from the past 6 months), normal
commercial transactions for the same financial instrument between informed, willing parties

- If the previous valuation technique cannot be applied (thete is no information available on the
negotiated prices for recent transactions concerning the same financial instrument) then to
determine the fair value the current matket price of another, basically same, instrument should
be used (in regards to the currency or the same or similar maturity date);

- If the information for fair value of the previous two techniques is inappropriate or cannot be
applied, the fair value of the financial instrument is determined through analysis of the
discounted cash flows or other alternative models for price determination.

The analysis of discounted cash flows is an important and frequently applied technique for
determining the fair value of many assets and liabilities. One of the most important factors in the
application of this technique is the determination of an appropriate discount rate.

Discount rate should include:

- Uncertainties and risks from cash flow assessment, related to certain asset ot liability, due to the
fact that those risks and uncertainties will change

- The measurement purpose

If the fair value of equity instruments not traded in an active market and the derivatives related to
them which have to be settled with unquoted equity instruments cannot be reliably measured, those
instruments should be assessed at their cost.
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
Accounting policies (continued)

211 Impairment of financial assets

The Bank assesses, on a quartetly basis, whether there is objective evidence that financial assets not
carried at fair value through profit or loss are impaired. Financial assets are impaired when objective
evidence demonstrates that a loss event has occurred after the initial recognition of the asset, and
that the loss event has an impact on the future cash flows on the asset that can be estimated reliably

The Bank analyses impairment evidence on loans, receivables and securities on individual and
collective basis. All individually significant loans and receivables are analyses on an individual basis.

Objective evidence that financial assets (including equity securities) are impaired can include default
or delinquency by a borrower, restructuring of a loan or advance by the Bank on terms that the
Bank would not otherwise consider, indications that a borrower or issuer will enter bankruptcy, the
disappearance of an active market for a security, ot other observable data relating to a group of
assets such as adverse changes in the payment status of borrowers or issuers in the group, or
economic conditions that correlate with defaults in the group.

In assessing collective impairment the Bank uses statistical modeling of historical trends of the
probability of default, the timing of recoveries and the amount of loss incurred, adjusted for
Management’s judgment as to whether current economic and credit conditions are such that actual
losses are likely to be greater or less than suggested by historical trends. Default rates, loss rates and
the expected timing of future recoveries are regularly benchmarked against actual outcomes to
ensure that they remain appropriate.

Impairment losses on assets carried at amortized cost are measured as the difference between the
carrying amount of the financial asset and the present value of estimated future cash flows
discounted at the asset’s original effective interest rate.

Impairment losses are recognized in profit or loss and reflected in an allowance account against
loans and advances. Interest on the impaired assets continues to be recognized through the
unwinding of the discount. When an event occurring after the impairment was recognized causes
the amount of impairment loss to decrease, the decrease in impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss.

Impairment losses on available-for-sale investment securities are recognized by transferring the
cumulative loss that has been recognized in other comprehensive income to profit or loss. The
cumulative loss that is removed from other comprehensive income and recognized in profit or loss
is the difference between the acquisition cost, net of any principal repayment and amortization, and
the current fair value, less any impairment loss previously recognized in profit or loss. Changes in
impairment provisions attributable to time value are reflected as a component of intetest income.

If, in a subsequent period, the fair value of an impaired available-for-sale debt security increases and
the increase can be objectively related to an event occurring after the impairment loss was
recognized in profit or loss, the impairment loss is reversed, with the amount of the reversal
recognized in profit or loss. However, any subsequent recovery in the fair value of an impaired
available-for-sale equity security is recognized in other comprehensive income
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
Accounting policies (continued)

212 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash balance on hand, demand deposits with banks, cash
deposited with the National Bank of the Republic of Macedonia (“NBRM”) and highly liquid
financial assets with original maturities of three months or less, which are subject to insignificant

risk of changes in their fair value, and are used by the Bank in the management of its short-term
liabilities.

Cash and cash equivalents are carried at amortized cost in the statement of financial position.

2.13 Loans and advances

Loans and advances are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market and that the Bank does not intend to sell immediately or in the near
future.

Loans and advances are initially measured at fair value plus incremental direct transaction costs, and
subsequently measured at their amortized cost using the effective interest method.

214 Investment securities

Investment securities are initially measured at fair value plus, in case of investment securities not at
fair value through profit and loss, incremental direct transaction costs and subsequently accounted
for depending on their classification as either held-to-maturity, fair value through profit or loss, or
available-for-sale.

Held-to-maturity

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative assets with fixed or determinable payments and
fixed maturity that the Bank has the positive intent and ability to hold to maturity, and which are
not designated as at fair value through profit or loss or as available for sale.

Held-to-maturity investments are carried at amortized cost using the effective interest method. If
the Bank buys debt securities classified as held-to-maturity, with discount or premium, the amount
of the obtained discount or premium will be recorded on the discount or premium accounts within
the appropriate group of accounts for investments in held-to-maturity securities. Other
commissions and fees that are integral part of the effective interest rate, as well as transaction costs
directly related to the transaction, are recorded on the accumulated amortization accounts within the
appropriate group of investing accounts for held-to-maturity debt secutities.

A sale or reclassification of a more than insignificant amount of held-to-maturity investments would
result in the reclassification of all held-to-maturity investments as available for sale, and would
prevent the Bank from classifying investment securities as held to maturity for the current and the
following two financial years. b
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
Accounting policies (continued)

Investment securities (continued)
Available-for-sale

Available-for-sale investments are non-derivative investments that are designated as available for
sale or are not classified as another category of financial assets. Unquoted equity securities whose
fair value cannot reliably be measured are carried at cost. All other available-for-sale investments are
carried at fair value.

Interest income is recognized in profit or loss using the effective interest method. Dividend income
is recognized in profit or loss when the Bank becomes entitled to the dividend. Foreign exchange
gains or losses on available-for-sale debt security investments are recognized in profit or loss.

Other fair value changes are recognized in other comprehensive income until the investment is sold
or impaired, whereupon the cumulative gains and losses previously recognized in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss as a reclassification adjustment.

2.15 Repo agreements

In repo agreements, the seller retains all the risks and benefits that arise from ownership of the asset
and the seller recognizes the assets subject to the repo contract in the statement of financial
position, in their original position, and estimates the financial instruments in accordance with the
accounting policy for the related asset. On the liabilities side, the seller recognizes liability for the
amount received from the buyer. The securities that are the subject of the repo contract are treated
as collateral for the contract.

Borrowed securities (Securities lending agreement)

In securities lending agreement, the borrower of the securities does not retain all the risks and
benefits arising from the ownership of the asset as there s obligation to return the same class of
financial instruments to the lender of the securities on a pre-arranged date. As a result of the lending
arrangement, the risks (i.e. the borrower’s credit risk) and the rights (right for registration,
dividends) also remain with the lender of the securities. Consequently, the borrowed securities
remain in the lender’s statement of financial pesition. The borrower does not recognize the
securities in the statement of financial position.

2,16 Foreclosed assets

Foreclosed assets are recognized upon completed legal procedure to foreclose and to entitle asset
with the ownership. Foreclosed assets are stated at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less
costs to sell. At the moment of recognition of the foreclosed asset, the receivable is derecognized
from the Statement of financial position. At least once in a year the Bank is required to provide
appraisal of the value of already foreclosed assets and recognize impairment loss in the profit or
loss.

Before 31 December 2011, the impairment loss for already foreclosed assets is assessed as a
difference between fair value less costs to sell and carrying amount. When the fair value less costs
to sell is lower than its cartying amount, impairment loss is recognized in profit or loss.

After June 2012 the Bank recognized the impairment loss for the already foreclosed asset in the
income statement equal at least to the higher amount of:

- the difference between the appraised value, reduced by the selling costs and the initial accounting
value, reduced by the total amount of impairment loss

-20% of the initial accounting value reduced by the total amount of impairment loss.
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
Accounting policies (continued)

Foreclosed assets (continued)

By exception to items above, for the assets foreclosed after 1 January 2010, the deadline and the
requirement for impairment loss recognition shall start from 1 July 2014, while the Bank shall be
required to make the first recognition of the impairment loss for these assets until 1 January 2015 at
the latest.

Until 1 July 2014, for these assets the Bank shall be required to recognize impairment loss in the
income statement equal to the difference between the appraised value, reduced by the selling costs
and the initial accounting value, reduced by the total amount of impairment loss.

If the Bank fails to sell the foreclosed assets within five yeats it shall be required at the end of the
fifth year to reduce the value of the already foreclosed asset to zero.

Foreclosed assets are derecognized upon sale of the asset, termination of use of the asset and after
the expiration of the fifth year. Realized gain from sale of the asset is recognized in the profit or loss

at the moment of sale.

2.17 Property and equipment
Recognition and measurement

Items of property and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depteciation and
accumulated impairment losses.

Cost includes expenditures that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset. Purchased
software that is integral to the functionality of the related equipment is capitalized as part of that
equipment.

When patts of an item of property or equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for
as separate items (major components) of property and equipment.

Subseguent costs

The cost of replacing part of an item of property or equipment is recognized in the carrying amount
of the item if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied within the part will flow to
the Bank and its cost can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognized. The costs of the day-to-day servicing of property and equipment are recognized in
profit or loss as incurred.

Depreciation

Depreciation is recognized in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of
each part of an item of property and equipment.

Depreciation rates, based on the estimated useful lives for the current and comparative period are as

follows:
%
2012 2011
Buildings 2,5 25
Equipment 14,3-25 14,3-25

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual value are reviewed at each financial year-end and
adjusted if appropriate.
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
Accounting policies (continued)

218 Intangible assets
Recognition and measurement

Intangible assets acquired by the Bank are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and
accumulated impairment losses.

Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure on intangible assets is capitalized only when it increases the future
economic benefits embodied in the specific asset to which it relates. All other expenditure is
expensed in profit and loss as incurred.

Amortisation

Amortization is recognized in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of
the intangible assets. The annual amortization rates based on the estimated useful lives for the
current and comparative period are as follows:

%

2012 2011

Software 10 10
Rights and licenses 10 10

2.19 Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of the Bank’s non-financial assets, other than deferred tax assets, are
reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any
such indication exists then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.

An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset of its cash-generating unit
exceeds its recoverable amount. A cash-generating unit is the smallest identifiable asset group that
continually generates cash flows that largely are independent from other assets and groups.
Impairment losses are recognized in profit or loss. Impairment losses are recognized in profit or
loss. Impairment losses in respect of cash-generating units are allocated to reduce the carrying
amount of the other assets in the unit (group of units) on a propottional basis.

The recoverable amount of an asset or a cash generating unit (CGU) is the greater amount of its fair
value less costs to sell and its value in use. In assessing value in use , the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset or CGU.

Impairment losses recognized in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for any indications
that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impatrment loss is reversed if there has been a
change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed
only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the catrying amount that would
have been determined, net of depreciation or amortization, if no impairment loss had been
recognized.

2.20 Leased assets - lessee

Leases in terms of which the Bank assumes substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are
classified as finance leases. Upon initial recognition the leased asset is measured at an amount equal
to the lower of its fair value and the present value of the minimum lease payments. Subsequent to
initial recognition, the asset is accounted for in accordance with the accounting policy applicable to
that asset.

Other leases are classified as operating leases and, except for the leased assets, they are not
recognized in the Bank’s statement of financial position.
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Notes to the financial statements {continued)
Accounting policies {continued)

2.21 Deposits, borrowings, debt securities issued and subordinated liabilities
Deposits, borrowings, debt securities issued and subordinated liabilities are the Bank’s sources of
debt funding. The Bank classifies capital instruments as financial liabilities or equity
accordance with the substance of the contractual terms of the instrument.

instruments in

The Bank classifies capital instruments as financial liabilities or equity instruments in accordance
with the substance of the contractual terms of the instrument.

Deposits, borrowings and subordinated liabilities are initially measured at fair value plus transaction
costs, and subsequently measured at their amortized cost using the effective interest method, except
where the Bank chooses to carry the liabilities at fair value through profit or loss.

2.22 Provisions

A provision is recognized if, as a result of a past event, the Bank has a present legal or constructive
obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation. Provisions are determined by discoun dng the expected future
cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and,
where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability.

A provision for onerous contracts is recognized when the expected benefits to be derived by the
Bank from a contract are lower than the unavoidable cost of meeting its obligations under the
contract. The provision is measured at the present value of the lower of the expected cost of
terminating the contract and the expected net cost of continuing with the contract. Before a

provision is established, the Bank recognizes any impairment loss on the assets associated with that
contract.

2.23 Employee benefits
Defined contribution plans

The Bank contributes to its emplovees' post retirement plans as prescribed by the national
ployees' p p I }

legislation. Contributions, based on salaries, are made to the national otganizations responsible for
the payment of pensions.

There is no additional liability in respect of these plans. Obligations for contributions to defined
contribution pension plans are tecognized as an expense in profit or loss when they are due.

Short-term benefits

Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed
as the related service is provided.

A liability is recognized for the amount expected to be paid under short-term cash bonus or profit-
sharing plans if the Bank has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result
of past service provided by the employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably

Other long-term employee benefits

In accordance with local regulations the Bank Pays two average salaries to its employees at the
moment of retirement and jubilee awards. The employee benefits are discounted to determine their
present value. There is no additional liability in respect of post retirement.
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Notes to the financial statements {continued)
Accounting policies (continued)

2.24 Share capital and reserves
Ordinary shares

Otrdinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of equity
instruments are recognized as a deduction from equity.

Repurchase of share capital
Repurchased shares are classified as treasuty shares and are presented as a deduction from total
equity. When treasury shares are sold subscquently the amount received is recognized as an increase

on equity, and the resulting surplus or deficit of the transaction is transferred to /from share
premium.

Reserves

Reserves are generated throughout the period, based on distribution of profit in accordance with
legal regulation and the Decisions made by the Bank’s Assembly

Dividends
Dividends are recognized as a liability in the period in which they are declared.

2.25 Earnings per share

The Bank presents basic and diluted earnings per share data for its ordinary shares. Basic earnings
per share is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the
Bank by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period. Diluted
earnings per share is determined by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders
and the weighted average number of ordinary shares outs tanding for the effects of all dilutive
potential ordinary shares, which comprise share options granted to employees.

2.26 Segment reporting

A segment is a component of the Bank that can be distinguished and engaged in either the
provision of products or services (operating/business segment) ot the provision of products and
services for certain economic areas (geographic segment) and is subjected to risks and rewards
different from other segments. The Bank reports by primary operating segments.

2.27 Events after the reporting date
Events after the reporting period that provide additional information about the Bank’s position at
the statement of financial position date (adjusting events) are reflected in the financial statements.

Events after the reporting period that are not adjus ting events are disclosed in the notes when
material.
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

3 Financial risk management
The Bank has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:

= credit risk
= liquidity risk
= market risks

This note presents information about the Bank’s exposure to each of the above risks, the Bank’s
objectives, policies and processes for measuring and managing risk, and the Bank’s management of
capital.

Risk management framework

The Managing Board has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Bank’s
risk management framewotk. The Managing Board has established the Asset and Liability
Committee (“ALCO?”), Credit Committee and the Supervisory Board has established Risk
Management Committee which is responsible for developing and monitoring Bank’s risk
management policies in their specified areas. All committees report regularly to the Managing Board
and Supervisory Board respectively.

The Bank’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyses the risks faced by the
Bank, to set appropriate tisk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk
management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions,
products and services offered. The Bank, through its training and procedures and policies for
management, aims to develop a constructive control environment, in which all employees
understand their roles and obligations.

The Bank’s Risk Management Committee is responsible for monitoting compliance with the Bank’s
risk management policies and procedures, and for reviewing the adequacy of the risk management
framework in relation to the risks faced by the Bank and the Bank's compliance with the
requirements of the NBRM related to the risk management. The Bank’s Risk Management
Committee is assisted in these functions by the Internal Audit. The Internal Audit undertakes both
regular and ad-hoc reviews of risk management controls and procedures, the results of which are
reported to the Audit Committee.

3.1 Credit risk :

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Bank if a customer or counterparty to a financial
instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Bank’s loans and
advances to customers and other banks, issued guarantees and letters of credits and investment
securities. For risk management reporting purposes, the Bank considers and consolidates all
clements of credit risk exposure (such as individual debtor’s default risk, country and sector’s risk).



i

Ey

il

’

o

0o n

o & o A

i

i

Universal Investment Bank AD, Skopje 23

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
Financial risk management (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

Management of credit risk

The Managing Board has delegated responsibility for the management of credit risk to its
Credit Committee that approves all credit exposutes up to EUR 500 thousand. All credit
exposures over EUR 500 thousand must be approved by the Supervisory Board. Separate
Bank’s Credit departments (Department for Corporate Loans, Department for Retail loans
and Credit Card Department) in close cooperation with Risk Management Department are
tesponsible for oversight of the Bank’s credit risk, including;

®  Formulating credit policies, covering collateral requirements, credit assessment, risk grading
and reporting, documentary and legal procedures, and compliance with regulatory and
statutory requirements.

*  Reviewing and assessing credit risk. Credit departments assess all credit exposures in excess
of designated limits, prior to facilities being committed to customers.

= Lumiting concentrations of exposure to geographies and industries (for loans and advances),
and by issuer, credit rating assessment by respective institutions, market liquidity and
country (for investment securities).

*  Banks’s credit risk grading in order to categorize exposures according to the degree of risk
of financial loss faced and to focus management on the tisks. The risk grading system is
used in determining where impairment losses may be required. The cutrent risk grading
framework consists of six grades reflecting vatious degrees of risk of default and the
availability of collateral.

®  Reviewing compliance with agreed exposure limits, including those for industries, country
risk and product types. Regular reports for the credit exposure, risk grading and
allowance for impairment are provided to the Risk Management Committee, and
appropriate cotrective action is taken.

Credit departments are required to implement credit policies and procedures and in
assistance with the Risk Management Department are responsible for the quality and
performance of its credit portfolio and for monitoring and controlling all credit risks in its
portfolios.

Regular audits of Credit departments’ processes are performed by the Internal Audit.
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
Financial risk management (continued)

Credit risk {continued)

Impaired loans and securities

Impaired loans and securities are loans and securities for which the Bank determines that it
is probable that it will be unable to collect all principal and interest due according to the
contractual terms of the loan / securities agreement(s). These loans are graded A to E in the
Bank’s internal credit risk grading system.

Past due, but not impaired loans

Loans and securities where contractual interest or principal payments are past due but the
Bank believes that impairment is not appropriate on the basis of the level of security /
collateral available and / or the stage of collection of amounts owed to the Bank.

Loans with renegotiated terms

Loans with renegotiated terms are loans that have been restructured due to deterioration in
the borrower’s financial position and where the Bank has made concessions that it would
not otherwise consider.

Allowances for impairment

The Bank establishes an allowance for impairment losses that represents its estimate of
incurred losses in its loan portfolio. The main components of this allowance ate a specific
loss component that relates to individually significant exposures, and a collective loan loss
allowance established for groups of homogeneous assets in respect of losses that have been
incurred but have not been identified on loans subject to individual assessment for
impairment.

The Bank calculates impairment, and makes a special reserve within the following limits:
®  From 0% to 10% of the credit risk exposure classified in risk category “A”.

" Over 10% to 25% of the credit risk exposure classified in risk category “B<,

" Over 25% to 50% of the exposure of credit risk classified in risk category “C*.

" Over 50% to 75% of the exposure of credit risk classified in risk category “D*.

®  Over 75% to 100% of the exposure of credit risk classified in risk category “E*,

Write-off policy

The Bank writes off a loan/ investment debt security balance (and any related allowances
for impairment) when the Supervisory Board determines that the loans/securities are
uncollectible. This determination is reached after considering information such as the
occurrence of significant changes in the borrower/issuet’s financial position such that the
borrower / issuer can no longer pay the obligation, or that proceeds from collateral will not
be sufficient to pay back the entire exposure. The Bank can also write off a loan/security
balance (and any related allowances for impairment) on the base of a court decision when all
other means for collection had expired.
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- Notes to the financial statements (continued)
| 5 Financial risk management (continued)
B
= Credit risk (continued)
' Set out below is an analysis of the gross and net (of allowances for impairment) amounts of
W individually impaired assets by risk category:
|- in Denar thousand
. 2012 Loans and receivables from customers
| Gross Impairment provision
ST Risk category A 5,023,901 (24,282)
i : Risk category B 358,057 (37,508)
- Risk category V 147,336 (47,357)
| Risk category G 51,982 (28,387)
Risk category D 236,921 (215,130)
;_.E‘_ 5,818,197 (352,664)
| 2011
-
i Risk category A 3,315,659 (24,625)
= Risk category B 318,768 (35,133)
' Risk category V 237,134 (96,982)
| - Risk category G 30,871 (17,279)
. Risk category D 198,992 (180,360)
' 4,101,424 (354,379)
S
|
- The Bank holds collateral against loans and advances to customers in the form of mortgage,
' movable property, and other registered securities over assets, cash deposits, lien over shares,
— guarantees, administrative blockage and other forms of collateral. Estimates of fair value are
based on the value of collateral assessed at the time of lending.
-
— According the Credit policy, depending on pledged collateral the Bank has the following
' types of loans:
" Morteage loans;
*  Loans with lien of movable property;
[l
* Lombard loans with pledged shares;
[l
®  Loans with pledged shares;
-
- ® Loans with guaranties from third parties;
T
®  Loans with administrative blockage;
[l .
= ]oans covered by cash deposit;
-‘ . B + . . . . .
' = Other types of loans, including rights of tangible and intangible assets with determined
— price.
-
|l
-.
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- Notes to the financial statements (continued)
| W Financial risk management (continued)

: | Credit risk (continued)
T Value of collateral (fair value) estimated for the purposes of protection against credit risk
I in Denar thousand Loans and Cash and
receivables cash Commitments
| from  equivalents Other and
= 2012 customers receivables  contingencies Total
Value of collateral for credit risk
| exposures subject to individual
impairment
First-class security instruments
- - cash deposits (in a depot and/or
limited to bank account) 316,026 5 22 94,954 411,007
-bank guarantees - - - 15,621 15,621
-corporate guarantees - - 96 151,792 151,888
Property and equipment under pledge 11,731,097 92 1,732 1,021,674 12,754,595
Other types of security 5,251,754 131 555 893,530 6,145,970
17,298,877 228 2,405 2,177,571 19,479,081
Value of collateral for credit risk
S exposures subject to collective
=4 impairment
First-class security instruments
- cash deposits (in a depot and/or -
limited to bank account) 2,704 96 135 2,935
=i -corporate guarantees 4 ) - 111 115
Guarantees from individuals 90,445 - - 2 90,445
- Other types of security 4,450 = - 1,722 6,172
97,603 * 96 1,968 99,667
|l
in Denar thousand Loans and
Loans and  receivables Commitments
receivables from Other and
-~ 2011 from banks customers receivables contingencies Total
Value of collateral for credit risk
exposures subject to individual
- impairment
First-class security instruments
—_— -cash deposits (in a depot and/or
limited to bank account) 582,698 43,097 3,454 629,249
R -state securities 315,948 - - 315,948
= -bank guarantees e 3,690 2 3,690
-guarantees from insurance
- companies 3,375 8 - 3,383
-corporate guarantees 480,407 28,604 2 509,011
~Sl Property and equipment under pledge 9,767,721 1,717,150 27,772 11,512,643
Other types of security 5,029,956 296,595 15,887 5,342,438
_— 315,948 15,864,157 2,089,144 47,113 18,316,362
== Value of collateral for credit risk
exposures subject to collective
1 impairment
First-class security instruments
.‘i-‘*‘ - cash deposits (in a depot and/or
——— limited to bank account) 20,128 61,043 33 81,204
-corporate guarantees 59,894 6 - 59,900
- Property and equipment under pledge ' 1,003,210 77,862 - 1,081,072
1,083,232 138,911 33 1,222,176
-
=
"
T




Z18'SSL'0L €B1C1Z'6 BELGYE ESEEFE BIP'GE EL6'LY 296'L.2'L SZT6V6 GLEEL 6EEL.  /E6'L6T'9 E£2ZLTL99  ZEE'96E [96'6E9 LVO'LPLL E£09'ESS

90¥'62 z - - £12's - - - - - - - 3 - 62L'¥e - S8LUN0D JaYi0
6v71'28 > 3 - lgee - - £ 88L'g < £64'89 = - 3 /8.'8 i sSauuN0o ueadoing Jayio
LL0'Y9 .8 2 - 188 18 . 2 : - - z s E VEL'ES % (an3o

PO SJ3guisw SaLUNOD
ueadoing Jnoyum)
$9LUNOD Jaquwiaw 0030

$/£'999 809'2/8'L 069'E 18221 869'c  ¥ve - - - - 6SE'Cl 89'628 98E'91E /96'6E9 262'0EE 28v'06E slaquiaw N3
LIB'ELE'S  88F'¥EQ'L 8PO'OVE  2L9'928 G2l't 2P9'LY 296'L/2'L Se2'ebe  LBL'LL BES'LL  GB2'0L2'9 68¥'282'9 Loo'og - B60'VLE'L  LEZL'E9L eluopasely jo olgnday
1102 zlog Loz zloeg Loz ¢2log 1102 Zloz  Liog zloz 110z AN Loz 2iog Lkozg AN
S}9SSE [Bj0] sajouabunuoo sa|gea@oal 1sQ  Munew 3|es 10) S|gE|IBAR  SISWOISNI 0} syueq ssjeainbs puesnoy} Jeusq ul
puB SIUSWILLILIOD 0} play SanuNoasg  salindasg S20UBAPE pPUE SUEOT 0} SBOUBAPE Yseo pue ysep
puEe sueo
T10Z PUe 210T

QU ¢ It st uordar oryderdoss £q pazmo8ares st ‘syunowre Furdired 1o v 2msodxo IIPITd UTEW S UL 2] UMOP SYE2Iq 2[(E} SUIMOT[OF 21T,
s10)08s 21ydeiboan

(panuiuos) ¥su ppatn

(penunuod) juswabeuew ¥su [e1ouRUlH
(penunuoo) sjuawalels [eISUBUl 34} 0} SAJION

8z aldoys ‘Qy yueg 1uswisaal] |BSIaAIU

O oonoonaooononRrAaaa@a@ea




92S'€8Z  80E'LBE 989'GE 0.8'65 826'c 081k % - - 2 = & 2/6'€vg 8SC0EE - 3 uolnIIsuoD

LeL'EE 0st'le 6vle % 9gl 5 5 - - - - & ov¥'LE 669l - m UONEJIUES JUSLIUOIIAUR
pue Juawabeuew

2)sem ‘|esodsip
19)em a)sem ‘Al ddns 1ajepn

656 692 1€8 - 28 65 - - 3 . - - 9z ogz't - - BUILOIPUOD JIE PUB WES)S
‘seb ‘Ajouosa jo Aiddng

008'LEL  /9E'€6  Ll0'8 095'S $55 82y z - - - g - sgz'ezl  6.848 - - Asnpul
BuunioenuEW JBYIO

SL2°6EL  £89°€SL  186'02 299'S1 1ve 861 - - - : - : £6£'8LlL  £28/€L - - wewdinba

pue sjoo} ‘fusulyoew

‘slejalll JO UoIONPold

ver'aL LLLZLL vPO'6 90s5'e sie 9L % E = B 2 & §95'99  62LFLL - = Ansnpui [eanaseuueyd
‘lany jo Buissenoid

pue uoponpold ‘sjeusiew

Buipjing jo uononpold

‘Asnpul [e21Wsyd

I8Y'LEL  EEEVEL  £68'LY 155'6¢ a0y SLL ] # - - - - 88l'68 Log've - - " Buunjpoenuew
JESM]O00) PUB
Buiyjo Aysnpul sjixs L
6¥¥'82e  STY'¥0E  89v'L S66'% 126 82'L - - - - 98Y'S - yIS'vIE  9vl'eee - o Anysnpui pood
ShL'L 8rL'9 188 - €l 0 - - - - - 4 gec’L  860'9 - 5 Buuin
£89°0% 088°L¥L 0952 84£'21 689 £85'8 2 # ) - - - yrr'2e  6L6'02E - - faaysy
pue Ajsalo} ‘ainjnouby
956'¥85 - s . £/9'71 s Zv6'oey s # = 88L'g § 51’8 - - - sjuapisal UON

LLoe 202 LL0Z (AR LL0Z rANA L10g FANA LLOZ cLoe LH02 zloe Li0g A LLo2g glog
s)asse |Bjo | sauabunuos s$3|qenad3al Jayl0 sjusjeainba Ajuniew oy a|es 1o} 3|ge|leAe  S1aLUO}SNO syueq puesnoy] Jeusdg uj

puUE SJUBWILLIWOD yseo pue ysen play senundag  SaIN2ag 0} SoUBApE 0] SSOUBAPE
pue sueo pue sueoT

110C PUe 10
IPQUINI(T TE 1€ S 701998 [emsnpur £q pazmodored st ‘syunowre Jurdrres 1P ¥ 2msodxd IPIID VLW S UL 21 UMOP SYEdI] (e} SUIMOTOF oY T,

$10}08s |eusnpu|

(peanunuoo) ysu upalo

{(penunuod) juswabeuew ¥ysu [eloueUld
{(panunuo2) syuawsajels |eloueul) ayj 0} SajON

62 aldoys ‘ay Yueg JUaWISaAU| [ESIBAIUN

A A1 A1 A A



Z18'551°0l €BLETIZ6 BEL6YE ESEEPE 81¥'s8 €L6°LY IO'IPLL  €09°CSS  C96'ZLCF SCC6V6  GLCEL GECEL ZE616C9 ECHCl99  JEE'96E 196669 iejoL
L - - L - - B - = = - = - - - slapel} se papiebal
Jou ade Jey] s|enpialpul
- pue siapel} a|og
9e8'69S'c  82ETI0Y OFE'Y 620'6 ¥5LpL gal'el - 2 - - - 98¥'s  2rL'0SE'E  0S9'v86'E - . S|enpialpy|
80G'2h # & < st = - - - - - - 8SE'CL - - # salpoq pue suoneziuebio
[BLIOJLLIBIXS 0} SBIUANOY
» 3 = 1 . - - - - - - - - - - - $BSN UMO JO} S3DIAIDS
pue spoob snouea
aonpoud jey} sployasnoy
‘siafojdwa se
sSployasnoy Se SaNAIOY

866'6 86821 ¥99 805 29g £el = & - . - - 2.0'6 ISTTL = @
SBIIAIOE SDIAISS JBYIQ
854 2e6'L 65 - &8 62 - " = . * # 509 £06'L ® H uonesatlial
‘JusWUIBLISIUS ‘WY
So¥'Ee 800'E2 2le - 6 L9 = 2 z 2 = = 6ED'gE L¥6'ge 5 7 saljialoe
aJed [B100S pue yyeaH

0852 Ly9'L 6 - L8 92 - - - . . - 9rr'e o't s %
uojeanpy
sgl €5 el - Se £e - - - - = - 2 0g . - 2OUBINSUI [BID0S
fiosindwoo ‘asuaep

ges'ey 18L'€2 B5E'E £48 25t 86 - - - - = & L'y 91L'2e & =

S96°0v L S50'06 10L'le  €65'9 S6L'L ovs = 2 Z z 2 8PE'6S  690'8LL v.5'€2 = &
JYNUAIDS pue [Baluysa ]
992 il 5] - S8l a1 - - - - - - - (A% - - alelsa
|31 0] paje|al Sannoy
856'C0L'E  ¥B9'EL2'e 8119 111 FANR: ]! GEL 660'VLE'L E09'ESS  €96'L/2'f GETEV6  S0L'S G059 096'v8 oAl LEE'96E L96'6E9 1oe
S0UBINSUI PUE |BIDUBUIY
290'211 £62'L8 v09'9L 95L'8 0LL'E ehv'e 2 " = 2 e = 889°251 VE0'9L - - uonEDIUNWWOD
pUE UoEULLIO|
E15°'€L1 2eL'EEl  B6G'L Zle'e 896 oey w = “ # = & 900'591 06E'621 & F SBINAIDE 82IAIDS POO)
pue BuiBpo| Jo) sanoey
0S¥'SLy 0/9'2lE  189'96  O¥B'S8 £6E'L1 89.'8 = = - 7 - - 9.E'L0E 296'Lle 7 = abeiois pue podsuel]
292'846 gc0'eL8  0L2'95 L£6'S8 855'L 9L0'Y z = it = 2 & VEV'PLE zol'ess 2 ” $310A0-1010W puUE SDIYIA
lojow jo nedal ‘apesy
|Ie}2] pue 3[EsSa|oUM
L1102 clozg Lo gLog 1102 zlog LL0g clozg LL0e gl0e LI0Z2 2l0e L1102 cLog LLOZ 2iog puesnoyyjeusdg u

S)9SSE |BJ0L sauabujuos sajgenlsoal JayiQ suajesnba Aunjew aes S18WO0}SND 0} syueq
PUE SJUSW}ILIWOYD USED pue Yseyd 0} play sanunaasg 1o} a|qejieae S90OUBADPE PUE SUBOT 0} SSOUBAPE
S90S pue sueoT

og

i

I

I

I mw mw m mw

1

mw mw mwmwmww Wi nnwmm o

(panuiuo9) ¥su }pal)

(panunuoa) Juswabeuew %S [BIOUBUI

(panunuog) sJUaWaIe]S [BIDUBUL) 9] 0] S3JON

aldoys ‘gy yueg JuswsSaAU| [ESISAIUN



HH

o

il

1410 1 ¥ 1 W ¥ A

L

B ¥  H1

L

1§ I 81

8 S 8

Universal Investment Bank AD, Skopje 31

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
Financial risk management {continued)

3.2 Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk 1s the risk that the Bank will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations
associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial

asset.

Management of liquidity risk

"The Bank’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always
have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed
conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Bank’s
reputation,

Treasury and Dealing Department receive information from other departments regarding
the liquidity profile of their financial assets and liabilities and details of other projected cash
flows atising from projected future business. Treasury and Dealing Department then
maintain a portfolio of short-term liquid assets, largely made up of short-term liquid
investment securities, to ensure that sufficient liquidity is maintained within the Bank.

The daily liquidity position and market conditions are regularly monitored. All liquidity
policies and procedures are subject to review and approval by ALCO. Daily reports cover
the liquidity position of the Bank. Liquidity reports are submitted monthly to the NBRM.

Exposure to liquidity risk

The Bank has access to a diverse funding base. Funds are raised using a broad range of
instruments including deposits and share capital. This enhances funding flexibility, limits
dependence on any one source of funds and generally lowets the cost of funds. The Bank
strives to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through the use
of liabilities with a range of maturities. The Bank continually assesses liquidity risk by
identifying and monitoring changes in funding required meeting business goals and targets
set in terms of the overall Bank strategy.

In addition, the Bank holds a portfolio of liquid assets as part of its liquidity risk
management strategy.

Liquidity risk represents the risk for the Bank of becoming incapable to provide sufficient
funds for settlement of its short-term liabilities when such liabilities fall due, or to provide
such funds at much higher costs.

The Bank is exposed on daily withdrawals of funds from its available cash sources of
current accounts, matured deposits, approved loans and other withdrawals.

The tables below analyses the Bank’s liabilities, grouped according to their maturity based
on the remaining period from the reporting date to the contracted maturity date at 31
December 2012 and 2011. The amounts are presented on a gross basis, i.e. not taking into
account the amounts of accumulated amortization, impairment provision and allocated
special reserve.
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
Financial risk (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)
in Denar thousand

From 3 to

Lessthan From1to3 12  From1to Over 5
31 December 2012 one month months months 5 years years Total
Due to banks 101,595 - 125,446 - - 227,041
Due to customers 3,225,261 1,301,947 3,534,349 1,165,713 21,919 9,249,189
Borrowings 34,647 2,604 57,888 169,281 18,521 282,941
Subordinated liabilities - - - 26,420 246,000 272,420
Other liabilities 61,186 818 41 656 14,716 77,517

3,422,689 1,305,469 3,717,724 1,362,070 301,156 10,109,108
in Denar thousand

From 3 From 1
Less than From 1 to to12 tob Over 5
one month 3 months months years years Total

31 December 2011
Due to banks 24,200 - 123,161 - - 147,361
Due to customers 3,321,369 1,140,484 3,399,858 996,199 22,926 8,880,836
Borrowings 10,868 612 31,685 119,484 26,155 188,804
Subordinated liabilities - 26,422 - 246,020 - 272,442
Other liabilities 38,432 6,084 7,259 7,335 - 59,110

3,394,869 1,173,602 3,561,963 1,369,038 49,081 9,548,553

3.3 Market risks

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as interest rate, equity prices,
foreign exchange rates and credit spreads (not relating to changes in the obligot’s/issuet’s
credit standing) will affect the Bank’s income or the value of its holdings of financial
instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk
exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimizing the return.

Exposure to interest rate risk — non-trading portfolios

The Bank’s operations are subject to the risk of interest rate fluctuations to the extent that
interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities mature or reprise at different times or
in differing amounts. In the case of floating rate assets and liabilities, the Bank is also
exposed to basis risk, which is the difference in reprising characteristics of the various
floating rate indices, such as the savings rate, LIBOR and different types of interest.

Risk management activities are aimed at optimizing net interest income, given market
interest rate levels consistent with the Bank’s business strategies.

Asset-liability risk management activities are conducted in the context of the Bank’s
sensitivity to interest rate changes. In general, the Bank is asset sensitive because of the
majority of the interest-earning assets and liabilities, the Bank has the right simultaneously
to change the interest rates. In decreasing interest rate environments, margins earned will
narrow as liabilities interest rates will decrease with a lower percentage compared to assets
interest rates. However, the actual effect will depend on various factors, including stability

of the economy, environment and level of the inflation.

The table below analyses the Bank’s interest rate gap position as at 31 December 2012 and
31 December 2011. The interest earning/bearing assets/ liabilities are grouped according to
the remaining period until the next change in interest rates.
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

Financial risk (continued)

Market risks (continued)
Interest rate risk {(continued)

33

Analysis of interest rate gap position (excluding portfolio held for trading and derivatives, if any)

in Denar thousand

Less than From 1to 3 From 3 to From 1 to Over 5
As at 31 December 2012 one month months 12 months 5 years years Total
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 1,678,332 5 - - - 1,678,332
Loans and advances o banks 638,945 - . - - 638,945
Loans and advances to customers 352,661 428,508 2,058,723 3,696,334 120,233 6,656,549
Investment securities 949,225 - 59,348 - - 1,008,573
Other receivables - - - - - -
3,619,163 428,598 2,118,071 3,696,334 120,233 9,982,399
Liabilities
Due to banks 100,825 - 123,000 750 - 224 575
Due to customers 2,131,703 - 5644537 1,323,200 - 9,096,440
Borrowings 33,863 2,604 57,887 169,282 18,521 282,157
Subordinated liabilities - - - 246,000 - 246,000
Other liabilities - . - - - -
2,266,391 2,604 5825424 1,736,232 18,521 9,849,172
Net interest rate gap position 1,352,772 425,994 (3,707,353) 1,960,102 101,712 133,227
As at 31 December 2011
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 1,026,196 - - - - 1,026,196
Loans and advances to customers 395,948 - - - 395,948
Loans and advances to banks 253,118 250,369 2,510,465 3,169,261 26,152 6,209,365
Investment securities 1,277,962 - - - - 1,277,962
Other receivables = = = & = -
2,953,224 250,369 2,510,465 3,169,261 26,152 8,909,471
Liabilities -
Due to banks 13,167 - 123,010 - - 136,177
Due to customers 2,070,449 - 4,785,431 1,877,940 - 8,733,820
Borrowings 5714 5,102 31,686 119,485 26,155 188,142
Subordinated liabilities 3 - - 246,020 - 246,020
Other liabilities = = & £ " 5
2,089,330 5102 4,940,127 2,243,445 26,155 9,304,159
Net interest rate gap position 863,894 245,267 (2,429,662) 925,816 (3) (394,688)

Sensitivity analysis

The interest rate sensitivity analysis has been determined based on the exposure to interest

rate risk at the reporting date. At 31 December 2012, if interest rates had been 200 basis

points highcr/ lower with all other variables were held constant, the Bank’s pre-tax profit for

the twelve month period ended 31 December 2012 would respectively decrease/increase by

approximately Denar 2,665 thousand (2011: Denar 7,894 thousand).

The other equity components would respectively increase/decrease by Denar 1,187

thousand (2011: nil).
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
Financial risk management (continued)

Market risks (continued)

Foreign currency risk

The Bank is exposed to currency risk through transactions in foreign currencies. The Bank
ensures that the net exposure is kept to an acceptable level by buying or selling foreign
currency at spot when necessary to address short-term imbalances. The Denar is pegged to
the Euro and the monetary projections envisage stability of the exchange rate of the Denar
against Euro.

The following tables summarize the net foreign currency risk position of the Bank at 31
December 2012 and 2011:

Other
in Denar thousand MKD EUR usD currencies Total
As at 31 December 2012
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 1,007,057 687,466 62,875 158,875 1,916,273
Loans and advances to banks and
customers 2,754,770 4,196,641 300,279 - 7,252,090
Investment securities 1,020,564 - - - 1,020,564
Other receivables 30,746 6,924 4,288 15 41 ,973
Total Assets 4,813,137 4,891,031 367,842 158,890 10,230,900
Liabilities
Due to banks 1,371 209,205 16,465 - 227,041
Due to customers 4,613,846 4,142,735 352,027 140,581 9,249,189
Borrowings K 282 941 - - 282,941
Subordinated liabilities - 272,420 - g 272,420
Other liabilities 48,655 21,461 1,613 5788 77,517
Total Liabilities 4,663,872 4,928,762 370,105 146,369 10,109,108
Net foreign currency position 149,265 (37,731) (2,263) 12,521 121,792
As at 31 December 2011
Tols] ARGt 4,864,108 4,439,838 434,150 137,504 9,875,600
Total Liabilities 4,511,588 4,487,986 433,756 127,766 9,561,096
Net foreign currency position 352,520 (48,148) 394 9,738 314,504
The following table shows the sensitivity of the Bank of an increase of the Denar compared
to foreign currency. The sensitivity analysis includes only the monetary items denominated
in foreign currency at the end of the year, thus making adjustment of their value when the
exchange rate of the foreign currencies is changed by 1% and/or 5%. Adverse amount
below marks a decrease of the profit or the other equity which appears in case the Denar
increases its value compared to the foreign currencies by 1% and/or 5%. When the value of
the Denar compared to foreign currencies decreases by 1% and/or 5%, the effect on the
profit or the other equity is equal but with reverse index as showed in the table below (in
Denar thousands). :
Change in Change in
in Denar thousand 2012 2011 2012 2011
Effect over proiit or loss
EUR 37,731 48,148 377 481
usD 2,263 394 113 20
Other currencies 12,521 9,738 626 487
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
Financial risk management (continued)

3.4 Operating risk
Operational risk is present in all activities, processes and otganizational structures that are
part of the business activities of the Bank.

An active management with operational risk requires identification of all operational risks
on which the Bank is exposed and taking of adequate measutes for their optimization. The
Bank’s departments and branches in cooperation with the Risk Management Department
prepare lists with operational activities on a monthly base.

All the operational activities are subject to registration in the centralized Register for the
operational activities.

The Bank’s operations are constantly subject to other risks which are defined as operating
tisks. These risks relate to deficiencies or errors in the operation of internal processes,
systems or to human etrors or ate due to external events.

3.5 Segment reporting

Operating segments

The Bank has two operational segments, as described below, which are the Bank’s strategic
business units. The strategic business units offer different products and services and are
managed separately based on the Bank’s management structure. Supervisory Board reviews
at least monthly Management report that obtains information regarding the business. The
following summary describes the operations in the Bank’s reportable segments:

®  Corporate Banking (legal entities) — Includes the following: different loans’ products for
corporate clients, issuing business credit cards, payment operations in the country and
abroad for residential and non-residential legal entities, operations on foreign exchange
market, inter-banking borrowings, brokerage services, trade with securities issued by the
State etc.

= Retail Banking (individuals) — Includes the following activities: different types of loans
for individuals, issuing debit and credit cards, payment operations in the country and
abroad for residential and non-residential individuals, brokerage services, safe renting,
operations on foreign exchange market etc.

Also, the Bank has activities regarding services of POS terminal network and ATMs that
were not specified in the above mentioned activities.
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
Financial risk management (continued)

in Denar thousand

1ent reporting (continued)
ating segments (continued)

Retail banking Corporate banking Non-allocated Total
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 20°
Income and
expenses
Net interest
income/(expenses) 99,701 76,266 328,955 321,028 - - 428,656 397,2¢
Net fee and
commission income 52,716 65,448 72,366 62,534 - - 125,082 127,98
Other operating
income 2,691 11,827 40,129 23,480 32,488 10,171 75,308 45 57
Release of imp.prov.
/Impairment
(losses), net 7,438 19,216 (2,836) (45,320) - - 4,602  (26,10¢
Depreciation and
amortization - - - - (54,176) (37,074)  (54,176) (37,07
Impairment losses
on non-financial
assets, net - - - - (1,604) - (1,604)
Investment costs for
property and
equipment - - - (22,273) (26,155) - (26,155)  (22,27¢
Other expenses (340,295) (321,054) (116,205) (108,774) (9€2) (6,918) (457,482) (436,74€
Profit before tax
per segment (177,749) (148,197) 322,409 230,673  (50,429)  (33,821) 94,231 48,65
Income tax (897) (1,29€
Profit for the year 93,334 47,35
Total assets per
segment 3,740,386 3,622,513 5,660,612 6,245,056 - 9,400,998 0,867,56
Non-allocated assets
per segment - - - 1,790,055 682,676 1,790,055 682,67
Total assets 3,740,386 3,622,513 5,660,612 6,245,056 1,790,055 682,676 11,191,053 10,550,24.
Total liabilities per
segment 7,890,228 6,629,891 1,903,225 2,934,079 - - 9,793,453 9,563,971
Non-allocated
liabilities per
segment - - - - 318,200 - 318,200
Total liabilities 7,890,228 6,629,891 1,903,225 2,934,079 318,200 - 10,111,653 9,563,97(
Geographic segments

in Denar thousand Republic of EU member

Macedonia countries  Other countries Non-allocated Total
2012
Total income 542 433 85,087 (620) 2,146 629,046
Total assets 9,924,685 1,131,437 117,368 17,563 11,191,053
2011
Total income 568,107 (37,678) (5,155) 45578 570,852
Total assets 9,041,245 659,562 166,489 682,949 10,560,245
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
Financial risk management (continued)

3.6 Fair value estimation

Fair value represents the amount at which an asset could be replaced or a liability settled on
an arm’s length basis. Fair values have been based on Management assumptions according
to the asset and liability type.

Financial instruments measured at fair value

According to TFRS 7, assets and liabilities are grouped into three levels on the basis of the
significance of inputs used in measuring the fair value. The hierarchy according to the fair
value is determined as follows:

®  Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;

®  Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for
the asset or liability, either directly (i.c. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. detived from prices);
and

®  Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs).

The level within which the financial asset or liability is classified is determined based on the
lowest level of significant input to the fair value measurement.

The financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value in the statement of financial
position are grouped into the fair value hierarchy as follows:

31 December 2012 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Assets
Securities available for sale 71,339 - - 71,339
31 December 2011 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Assets
Securities available for sale 13,379 . - 13,379
Financial instruments not measured at fair value
The following table summarizes the carrying amounts and fair values to those financial
assets and liabilities not presented in the Statement of Financial Position at their fair value.
31 December 2012 31 December 2011
Net Carrying Net Carrying
Amount Fair Value Amount Fair Value
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 1,916,273 1,916,273 1,741,041 1,741,041
Loans and advances to banks 639,967 639,967 396,337 396,337
Loans and advances to customers 6,612,123 6,612,123 6,291,937 6,291,037
Investment securities ’ 949,225 949,225 1,277,962 1,277,962
Other receivables 41,973 41,973 85,418 85,418
Financial liabilities
Due to banks 227,041 227,041 147,361 147,361
Due to customers 9,249,189 9,249,189 8,880,836 8,880,836
Borrowings 282,941 282,941 188,804 188,804
Other liabilities 77.517 77,517 59,110 59,110
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
Financial risk management (continued)

Fair value estimation (continued)
Financial instruments not measured at fair value (continued)
Cash and cash equivalents

The carrying value of cash and cash equivalents approximates their fair value, considering
that they include cash, bank accounts and bank deposits with short - term maturity.

Loans and advances to customers

Loans and advances are carried at amortized cost and are net of provisions for impairment.
The loans and advances have predominantly floating interest rates and their fair value is
determined by discounting of future cash flows using the market interest rate. The fair value
approximates their carrying value.

Investment securities
[nvestment secutities include short term interest earning assets held to maturity. Their fair
value approximates their carrying value.

Other financial assets
The fair value of other financial assets is considered to approximate their respective carrying
values by definition and due to their short-term nature.

Deposits and borrowings
The estimated fair value of deposits with no stated maturity, which includes non-interest-
bearing deposits, is the amount repayable on demand.

The fair value of the term deposits with variable interest rates approximates their carrying
values as at the Statement of Financial Position date.

Botrowed funds carry predominantly floating rates and due to the interest rate reprising
carrying value is not materially different from their fair value.

Other liabilities
Catrying value of other liabilities approximates their fair value with relation to their short-
term maturity.
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

Financial risk management (continued

)

3.7 Financial instruments by categories

Net carrying amounts of the financial assets and liabilities of the Bank recognized at the date

of the Statement of financial position for the presented periods are classified as follows:

31 December 2012
Financial assets

Assets at
fair value
Assets Available through
held to Loans and for sale profit or
maturity  receivables assets loss Total
Cash and cash equivalents - 1,916,273 - - 1,916,273
Loans and advances to banks - 639,967 - - 639,967
Loans and advances to
customers - 6,612,123 - - 6,612,123
Investment securities 949 225 - 71,339 - 1,020,564
Other receivables - 41,973 - - 41,973
949,225 9,210,336 71,339 - 10,230,900
Financial liabilities
Other
financial
liabilitizs at
amortized
cost Total
Due to banks 227,041 227,041
Due to customers 9,249,189 9,249,189
Borrowings 282,941 282,941
Other liabilities 77,517 77,517
9,836,688 9,836,688
31 December 2011
Financial assets
Assets at
fair value
Assets Available through
held to Loans and for sale profit or
maturity  receivables assets loss Total
Cash and cash equivalents - 1,741,041 - - 1,741,041
Loans and advances to banks - 396,337 - - 396,337
Loans and advances to
customers - 6,291,937 - - 6,291,037
Investment securities 1,277,962 - 13,379 - 1,291,341
Other receivables - 85,418 - - 85,418
1,277,962 8,514,733 13,379 - 9,806,074
Financial liabilities
Other
financial
liabilities at
amortized
cost Total
Due to banks 147,361 147,361
Due to customers 8,880,836 8,880,836
Borrowings 188,804 188,804
Other liabilities 59,110 59,110
9,276,111 9,276,111
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
Financial risk management (continued)

3.8 Capital management
Regulatory capital

The Bank’s lead regulator NBRM sets and monitors capital requirements for the Bank as a
whole. The Bank is directly supervised by the local regulators.

In implementing capital adequacy requirements, the Bank maintains a prescribed ratio of
15% of own funds to sum of total risk-weighted assets. Total risk-weighted assets are sum
of credit risk-weighted assets , sum of capital requirements for currency risk and sum of
capital requirements for operating risk.

Bank’s own funds are a sum of core capital, supplementary capital, less deductions, as
follows:

* Core capital, which includes ordinary and non-cumulative preference shares, share
premium, bank reserves allocated from net profit that serve for covering losses arising
from risks the Bank faces in its operations, retained earnings not eacumbered by any
future obligations, stated in the statement of financial position and confirmed by a
Decision of the Bank's Shareholders’ Assembly or accumulated loss from previous year,
profit for the year if confirmed by the certified auditor, after deductions for loss for the
year, licenses, patents, goodwill and other trademarks, treasury shares and the difference
between the amount of the required allowance for impairment in accordance with the
risk classification and allocated allowance for impairment and allowance for impairment
calculated according the Decision for credit risk management.

= Supplementary capital, which includes cumulative preference shares, share premium less
the amount of purchased treasury cumulative preference shares, hybrid capital
instruments and subordinated liabilities issued by the Bank.

® The total of core capital and supplementary capital is reduced by the Bank’s capital
investments in banks and financial institutions exceeding 10% of the capital of such
institutions, subordinated instruments and other investments in other banks or other
financial institutions where the Bank holds more than 10% of the capital and other
deductions.

When determining the amount of own funds, the Bank shall observe the following
restrictions:

= The amount of the supplementary capital cannot exceed the amount of the core capital.

®  The sum of the nominal value of subscribed and paid-in ordinary shares, the share
premium of such shatres and the amount of reserves and the retained earnings, less the
deductions from the core capital and supplementary capital previously described, should
exceed the sum of other positions which are part of the Bank's core capital.

The amount of subordinated instruments which are part of the supplementary capital shall
not exceed 50% of the amount of core capital.

The Bank’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor
and market confidence and to sustain future development of the business. The impact of
the level of capital on shareholders’ return is also recognized and the Bank recognizes the
need to maintain a balance between the higher returns that might be possible with greater
gearing and the advantages and security afforded by a sound capital position.
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
Financial risk management (continued)

Capital management (continued)

As at 30 September 2012 new Decision for methodology for calculation capital adequacy
was enacted and the Bank has complied with the new changes that the Bank has successfully
implemented.

Major changes with the new Decision are following:

- Change in calculation of risk-weighted assets for currency risk which until the
change for positions in V, G and D were calculated on gross basis and now are
calculated on net basis;

- Introducing a new ponders of risk for certain positions (35% placements with
house collateral, 75% for portfolio for small loans with certain criteria to be filled
etc.);

- Terminating of risk ponders (125% to used limit on credit cards and overdrafts and
50% tor loans secured with house collateral only for individuals);

- Introducing new parameters in calculation of risk weighted assets (RWA), which is
capital against operating risk.

The Bank has complied with all externally imposed capital requitements throughout the
period. There were no significant changes in the Bank’s approach to capital management
during the yeat.

As at 31 December 2012 and 2011 the Bank capital adequacy ratio is 15.81 % (2011:
15.92%) which is in compliance with the prescribed ratio.

Capital allocation

The allocation of capital between specific operations and activities is, to a large extent,
driven by optimization of the return achieved on the capital allocated. The amount of
capital allocated to each operation or activity 1s based primarily upon the regulatory own
funds. The process of allocating capital to specific operations and activities is monitored
independently of those responsible for the operation, by the Supervisory Board.



1]

N W E & &

i d &

~
|.-

-

Universal Investment Bank AD, Skopje 42

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

4 Critical accounting estimates and judgments

The most important areas in need of estimates and judgments include:
Allowance for impairment for loans and receivables

Assets carried at amortized costs are evaluated for impairment losses as disclosed in Note
2:11;

The Bank reviews its loan portfolios to assess impairment at least on a monthly basis. In
determining whether an impairment loss should be recorded in the Statement of
comprehensive income, the Bank makes judgments as to whether there is any observable
data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows from a
portfolio of loans before the decrease can be identified with an individual loan in that
portfolio. This evidence may include observable data indicating that there has been an
adverse change in the payment status of borrowers in a group, or national or local economic
conditions that correlate with defaults on assets in the group. Management uses estimates
based on historical loss experience for assets with credit risk characteristics and objective
evidence of impairment similar to those in the portfolio when scheduling its future cash
flows. The methodology and assumptions used for estimating both the amount and timing
of future cash flows are reviewed regularly to reduce any differences between loss estimates
and actual loss experience.

Collectively assessed impairment allowances cover credit losses inherent in portfolios of
loans and advances and held-to-maturity investment securities with similar credit risk
characteristics when there is objective evidence to suggest that they contain impaired loans
and advances and held-to-maturity investment securities, but the individual impaired items
cannot yet be identified. In assessing the need for collective loan loss allowances,
management considers factors such as credit quality, portfolio size, concentrations, and
economic factors, In order to estimate the required allowance, assumptions are made to
define the way inherent losses are modeled and to determine the required input parameters,
based on historical experience and current economic condition. The accuracy of the
allowances depends on how well these estimate future cash flows for specific counterparty
allowances and the model assumptions and parameters used in determining collective
allowances.

Allowance for impairment of available-for-sale equity investments

The Bank determines that available for sale investments are impaired when there has been a
significant or prolonged decline in the fair value below its cost. This determination of what
is significant or prolonged requires judgment. In making this judgment, the Bank evaluates
among other factors, the normal volatility in share price. In addition, impairment may be
appropriate when there is evidence of deterioration in the financial health of the investor,
industry and sector performance, changes in technology, and operational and financing cash
flows.
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

Critical accounting estimates and judgements (continued)
Determining fair value

The determination of fair value for financial assets and liabilities for which there is no
observable market price requires the use of valuation techniques as described in accounting
policy 2.10. For financial instruments that trade infrequently and have little price
transparency, fair value is less objective, and requires varying degrees of judgment
depending on liquidity, concentration, uncertainty of market factors, pricing assumptions
and other risks affecting the specific instrument.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Impairment losses are recognized in the amount for which the cartying value of an asset or
cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount. In determining the recoverable
amount, Management estimates expected prices, cash flows from each cash generating unit
and determines the appropriate interest rate for calculating the present value of those cash
flows.
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
As at and for the year ended 31 December 2012
(All amounts expressed in Denar thousand, unless otherwise stated)
5 Net interest income
Structure of interest income and expenses according to type of financial instruments
2012 2011
Interest income
Cash and cash equivalents 8,070 10,855
Loans and advances to banks 19,258 36,750
Loans and advances to customers 721,818 706,511
Investment securities 42,718 41,179
791,864 795,295
Interest expense
Due to customers 319,117 304,547
Due to banks 5,597 55,028
Borrowings 3,939 3,969
Subordinated liabilities 34,555 34,459
363,208 398,003
Net interest income 428,656 397,292
6 Net fee and commission income
Structure of fees and commission income and expenses according to type of financial
activities
2012 2011
Fee and commission income
Loans and credit cards 87,519 55,478
Payment operations
- Domestic 85,721 93,829
- International 25,925 29,449
Letters of credit and guarantees 4,770 13,185
Other 26,751 23,668
230,686 215,609
Fee and commission expenses
Credit cards 80,545 63,265
Payment operations
- Domestic 14,839 14,129
- International 9,949 9,287
Brokerage 47 60
Other 224 886
105,604 87,627
Net fee and commission income 125,082 127,982
7 Other operating income
2012 2011
Gains from equity instruments sold 31,369 2
Rent income 2,522 2,328
Dividends received 2,083 362
Release of impairment provisions and special reserve, net (note 25) 1,044 3,059
Gains from foreclosed assets sold 551 -
Gains form equipment sold - 268
Other 11,544 11,759
49,113 17,776

During 2012, the Bank sold foreign equity investments, shares, for the amount of 33,512
Denar thousand for which the carrying amount was 2,143 Denar thousand. The Bank
realized gain from this transaction recognized in current profit or loss in the amount of

31,369 Denar thousand.
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
As at and for the year ended 31 December 2012
(All amounts expressed in Denar thousand, unless otherwise stated)
8 Release of impairment provision/impairment (losses) on financial
assets, net
2012 2011
{Charge) / recovery for:
Loans and advances to customers (Note 15) 6,350 (25,455)
Other receivables (Note 20) (1,748) (649)
4,602 (26,104)
9 Personnel expenses
2012 2011
Net salaries and contributions 143,004 137,664
Social and health contributions 64,541 61,093
Other employee benefits 8,780 9,088
216,325 207,845
10 Other operating expenses
2012 2011
Materials and services 107,256 95,916
Rent expenses 68,687 65,387
Deposit insurance premiums 49,499 43,568
Administrative and marketing expenses 16,479 18,642
Litigation expenses 2,543 1,934
Software license expenses 10,679 8,929
Property and employee insurance premiums 4,020 3,706
Impairment losses on foreclosed assets (Note 17) 1,604 -
Other expenses 9,149 13,092
268,916 251,174
11 Income tax expense
2012 2011
Current income tax expense 897 1,296
897 1,296
Reconciliation of the income tax expense as per the Statement of comprehensive income
for the years ended 31 December 2012 and 2011 is as follows:
2012 2011
Non — deductible expenses for tax purposes 10% (2011:10%) 897 1,296
Non - taxable income for tax purposes - -
Tax losses carried forward \ - -
897 1,296
12 Earnings per share
The basic and diluted earnings per share are computed when the net profits for the year
(belonging to the common shareholders) is divided with the weighted average number of
shares during the yeat.
2012 2011
Net-profit attributable to shareholders 93,334 47,359
Net-profit attributable to holders of ordinary shares 93,334 47,359
Issued ordinary shares at 1 January 530,445 530,445
Effect from change of ordinary shares during the year - -
Weighted average number of shares 530,445 530,445
Basic and diluted earnings per share (in Denars) 176 89
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
As at and for the year ended 31 December 2012
(All amounts expressed in Denar thousand, unless otherwise stated)

13 Cash and cash equivalents

2012 2011

Account and balances with the NBRM, except for obligatory foreign currency
reserves 702,867 543,771
Current accounts and deposits with foreign banks 390,482 420,791
Cash in hand 237,519 273,834
Placement with banks with maturity up to 3 months 100,422 30,130
Current accounts and deposits with domestic banks 1,362 13,394

Included in cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of the Statement
of cash flows 1,432,652 1,281,920
Obligatory foreign currency reserves 422,284 452,870
_Restricted deposits 61,337 6,151
1,916,273 1,741,041

According to the Decision on obligatory reserve, Bank's reserve prescribed tatio equals 10%
for liabilities in domestic currency, 20% for liabilities in domestic currency with FX clause
and 13% for liabilities in foreign currency. The basis for the reserve requirement is
determined as an average of the Bank’s liabilities for each calendar day of the preceding
month. The reserve requirement maintenance period is from 11th in the current month
until 10th in the following month.

Bank’s reserve requirement in foreign currency is allocated on special foreign currency
accounts of the NBRM abroad, and it is fulfilled in Euro at a fixed level.

The interest rate on the obligatory reserve in Denars during 2012 and 2011 amounted to 1%
per annum (2011: 2% per annum). The interest rate on the obligatory reserve in foreign
currency duting 2012 and 2011 amounted to 0.1% per annum.

14 Loans and advances to banks
2012 2011
Short-term Long-term Short-term Long-term
Loans to banks _ 639,967 - 396,337 -
639,967 i 396,337 -

Loans and advance to banks in the amount of MKD 639,967 thousand (2011: MKD
396,337 thousand) are repo transactions with First Investment Bank Sofia, with securities as
collateral.
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
As at and for the year ended 31 December 2012
(All amounts expressed in Denar thousand, unless otherwise stated)

15 Loans and advances to customers
2012 2011
Loans and advances to customers at amortized cost 6,612,123 6,291,937
6,612,123 6,291,937

The structure of loans and advances to customers by type of debtor is as follows:

2012 2011
Short-term Long-term Short-term Long-term
Corporate customers:
Principal 807,013 1,769,708 881,465 2,207,031
Interest 16,122 - 21,049 -
Public sector:
Principal 5 3,509 - 9,079
Interest 9 - 27 -
Other:
Principal - 1,386 - 1,935
Interest 10 - - -
Financial institution other than banks:
Principal 32,099 81,913 - -
Interest 350 - - -
Retail customers:
Principal
Housing 20,468 563,496 506 356,073
Consumer 86,205 1,763,508 29,026 1,699,372
Vehicle 585 12,413 331 18,307
Credit cards 317,353 - 317,333 307
Other 259,488 859,825 200,760 915,206
Interest 21,391 - 21,039 -
Nonresident customers:
Principal 79,645 274,066 81,153 -
Interest 3,268 - - -
1,644,011 5,329,824 1,552,689 5,107,310
Current maturity 1,117,744 (1,117,744) 1,505,645 (1,505,645)
2,761,755 4,212,080 3,058,334 3,601,665
_ Less: provision for impairment (273,137) (88,575) (319,845) (48,217)
2,488,618 4,123,505 2,738,489 3,553,448

At 31 December 2012 non-performing loans amounted to Denar 325,955 thousand (2011:

Denar 448,575 thousands). Unrecognized interest relating to such loans amounted to Denar
56,075 thousand (2011: Denar 63,915 thousand).

As at 31 December 2012 loans and advances to customers in amount of Denar 20,060
thousand are mortgaged as collateral for borrowings from MBDP (Note 23).

; 2012 2011

Movements of specific provision for impairment

Balance at 01 January 354,379 329,377

Additional provision for impairment / (Release) of provision for impairment, net

(Note 8) (1,715) 25,002

Balance as at 31 December 352,664 354,379
2012 2011

Movements of group provision for impairment

Balance at 01 January 13,683 13,230

Additional provision for impairment / (Release) of provision for impairment, net

(Note 8) (4,635) 453

Balance as at 31 December 9,048 13,683

Total provision for impairment 361,712 368,062
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
As at and for the year ended 31 December 2012
(All amounts expressed in Denar thousand, unless otherwise stated)
16 Investment securities
2012 2011
Held-to-maturity investment securities 949,225 1,277,962
Available-for-sale investment securities 71,339 13,379
1,020,564 1,291,341
Held-to-maturity investment securities with fixed interest rate
2012 2011
Treasury Bills 949,225 1,277,962
949,225 1,277,962
Available-for-sale investment securities
2012 2011
Government bills 59,348 -
Equity securities 11,991 13,379
71,339 13,379
The movement of the impairment provision for investment securities is as follows:
2012 2011
Movements of provision for impairment
Balance at 01 January 1,372 1,372
Balance at 31 December 1,372 1,372

Government bills issued by the Ministry of Finance of RM as at 31 December 2012 mature

from 3-6 months and bear interest from 4% p.a.

As at 31 December 2012, treasury bills issued by the National Bank of the Republic of
Macedonia mature within 28 days (2011: 28 days) and bear interest from 3.65 %and 3.75%

p-a. (2011: from 4.00% p.a.).



HIHOUHUHHUHEEHEBHOOEEEEEEREETAET R R

Universal Investment Bank AD, Skopje 49
Notes to the financial statements (continued)
As at and for the year ended 31 December 2012
(All amounts expressed in Denar thousand, unless otherwise stated)
17 Foreclosed assets
Residential
facilities
and
Land Buildings  Equipment apartments Other Total
Cost
At 01 January 2011 573 45,718 1,938 26,388 79,619 154,236
Additions - 12,054 - 13,395 25,449
At 31 December 2011/01 January 2012 573 57,772 1,938 39,783 79,619 179,685
Additions during the year 202 145,524 31,124 7.271 - 184,121
(Disposals) - - - (6,215) - (6,215)
At 31 December 2012 775 203,296 33,062 40,839 79,619 357,591
Impairment provision
At 01 January 2011 - 19,934 1,137 13,466 75,622 110,159
At 31 December 2011/01 January 2012 - 19,934 1,137 13,466 75,622 110,159
Impairment loss during the year (Note 10) - - - 804 800 1,604
At 31 December 2012 - 19,934 1,137 14,270 76,422 111,763
Net carrying value
At 01 January 2011 573 25,784 801 12,922 3,997 44,077
At 31 December 2011 573 37,838 801 26,317 3,997 69,526
At 31 December 2012 775 183,362 31,925 26,569 3,197 245,828
As at 31 December 2012, the net carrying value of Bank’s foreclosed assets amount to
Denar 245,828 thousand (2011: 69,526). As at 31 December 2012 their fair value is in the
amount of Denar 324,963 thousand (2011: Denar 76,909 thousand).
18 Intangible assets
Rights and Assets under
Software licenses development Total
Cost
At 01 January 2011 32,901 30,468 - 63,369
Additions during the year 9,270 2,353 96,515 108,138
At 31 December 2011/01
January 2012 42,171 32,821 96,515 171,507
Additions during the year 1.414 52 23,469 24,935
Transfers 78,413 29,395 (107,808) -
At 31 December 2012 121,998 62,268 12,176 196,442
Accumulated amortization
At 01 January 2011 21,092 12,837 - 33,929
Amortization for the year 1,932 2,092 - 4,024
At 31 December 2011/01
January 2012 23,024 14,929 - 37,953
Amortization for the year 7.218 4,226 11,444
At 31 December 2012 30,242 19,155 - 49,397
Net carrying value
At 01 January 2011 11,809 17,631 " 29,440
At 31 December 2011 19,147 17,892 96,515 133,554
At 31 December 2012 91,756 43,113 12,176 147,045
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Universal Investment Bank AD,Skopje 51
Notes to the financial statements (continued)
As at and for the year ended 31 December 2012
(All amounts expressed in Denar thousand, unless otherwise stated)
20 Other receivables
2012 2011
Prepaid expenses 27,612 31,609
Fee and commission receivables 22,467 23,668
Credit card receivables 17,807 11,486
Money transfer 7,597 8,226
Inventories 7,588 6,139
Income tax receivables 6,781 4432
Employee receivables 39 48
Trade receivables 26 53
Advances for intangible assets and property, plant and equipment - 6,325
Other 9,236 10,416
99,153 102,402
Less: provision for impairment (14,300) (12,552)
84,853 89,850
2012 2011
Movements of provision for impairment
Balance at 01 January 12,652 11,803
Additional provision for impairment / (Release) of provision for impairment, net
(Note 8) 1,748 649
Balance at 31 December 14,300 12,552
The major part of the prepaid expenses in the amount of Denar 14,547 thousand (2011:
Denar 16,728 thousand) relate to the lease of the business premises for the Bank’s branches
in Strumica. The total rent according the lease agreement was paid in advance in 2000,
covering lease period of 20 years.
During December 2012, the Bank has received a Report from the Public Revenue Office
requesting corrections of the tax return form for 2011 in the amount of Denar 190
thousand for paid penalty interest due to delayed payment for withheld tax. The Bank acted
according to the Report and recorded corrections on the accumulated loss in the amount of
Denar 209 thousand and cotrection in the amount of Denar 190 thousand on opening
balance for Other receivables and Denar 19 thousand for Income tax receivables for the
year ended 2011. The corrections were appropriately stated in the Statement of changes in
equity and in the Statement of cash flows.
21 Due to banks
2012 2011
Short-term Long-term Short-term Long-term
Current accounts of domestic banks 696 . 3,077 -
Current accounts of foreign banks : 7,257 - 7,202 -
Term deposits of domestic banks 79,970 - é -
Term deposits of foreign banks 125,446 - 123,160 -
Restricted deposits of domestic banks 750 2 750 -
Other deposits 12,822 - 13,172 -
227,041 - 147,361 -
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
As at and for the year ended 31 December 2012
(All amounts expressed in Denar thousand, unless otherwise stated) -

22 Due to customers
2012 2011
Short-term Long-term Short-term Long-term
Non-financial institutions
Current accounts 785,666 - 801,976 -
Term deposits 389,619 1,144 428,896 651
Restricted deposits 23,801 18,307 155,224 62,930
Other deposits 19,490 - 13,467 -
1,218,576 19,451 1,399,563 63,581
State
Current accounts 932 - 1,367 -
Demand deposits 399 - 399 A
1,331 - 1,766 -
Not-for-profit institutions
Current accounts 48,441 - 34,371 -
Term deposits 6,233 - 3,863 -
Restricted deposits 48 1,300 4,043 -
Other deposits 75 - 164 -
54,797 1,300 42 441 -
Financial institutions, other than banks
Current accounts 24,310 - 9,846 -
Term deposits 285,736 44,975 508,535 99,500
Restricted deposits 10,308 15,465 12,266 15,376
320,354 60,440 530,647 114,876
Citizens
Current accounts 1,122,846 - 1,070,661
Demand deposits 48 - 108
Term deposits 4,519,668 1,277,034 4,354,723 684,167
Restricted deposits 131,530 281,207 131,506 270,788
Other deposits 8,834 - 6,821 -
5,782,926 1,558,241 5,563,819 954,955
Nonresidents
Current accounts 114,440 - 81,191 -
Term deposits 104,529 6,734 120,068 1,443
Restricted deposits - 108 - 108
Other deposits - 5,062 - 6,378 -
224,931 6,842 207,637 1,551
Current maturity 458,642 (458,642) 115,838 (115,838)

8,061,557 1,187,632 7,861,711 1,019,125
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
As at and for the year ended 31 December 2012
(All amounts expressed in Denar thousand, unless otherwise stated)

23 Borrowings
Structure of borrowings by type of borrowing and creditor's sector
2012 2011
Short-term Long-term Short-term Long-term
Banks 16,584 253,763 650 175,136
State 998 11,598 17 13,001
Current maturity 77,559 (77,559) 42,498 (42,498)
95,139 187,802 43,165 145,639
Borrowings by creditors
2012 2011
Short-term Long-term Short-term Long-term
Domestic sources:
Macedonian Bank for Development
Promotion in domestic currency 16,584 26,317 540 51,695
Ministry of Finance of RM 996 11,588 17 13,001
Macedonian Bank for Development
Promotion in foreign currency - 227,446 110 123,441
17,580 265,361 667 188,137
Current maturity 77,559 (77,559) 42,498 (42,498)
95,139 187,802 43,165 145,639

During 2012, based on already signed Frame contracts with Macedonian Bank for
Development Promotion AD, Skopje (“MBDP”), the Bank has withdrawn funds from the
credit line for small and medium enterptises with year of maturity 2013-2014 and interest
rate 5- 5.5% per annum. Collateral for these Bank’s borrowings ate bills of exchange with

statements and loans and advances from the end user of mortgages funds on behalf of
MBDP (Note 15).

In addition, at 31 December 2012, the Bank has borrowings in the amount of Denar 12,594
thousand (2011: 13,018) based on signed borrowing agreement with the Ministry of Finance
of the Republic of Macedonia with a year of maturity 2013-2014 and interest rate of 4-5%

P €r anmnuin.

24 Subordinated liabilities
2012 2011
Subordinated loan 272,420 272,442
272,420 272,442

The Subordinated loan from First Investment Bank Sofia was granted with an interest rate
of 14%, and maturity of 7 years up to March 2016. The above liabilities will, in the event of
winding-up of the Bank, be subordinated to the Bank’s sharcholders, holders of hybrid
instruments and other creditors.
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
As at and for the year ended 31 December 2012
(All amounts expressed in Denar thousand, unless otherwise stated)

25 Provision and special reserve
Commitments and
contingencies
Balance at 01 January 2011 5,933
Additional provision for impairment / (Release) of provision for impairment, net
(Note 7) (3,059)
Balance at 31 December 2011 (Note 28) 2,874
Balance at 01 January 2012 2,874
Additional provision for impairment / (Release) of provision for impairment, net
(Note 7) (1,044)
Balance at 31 December 2012 (Note 28) 1,830
26 Other liabilities
2012 2011
Accrued expenses 35,605 28917
Trade payables 11,151 15,802
Liabilities related to trust activities 7,263 7,263
Fee and commission 3,743 3,385
Deferred income 702 12,451
Other taxes and contributions 13 92
Other 19,755 3,743
78,232 71,653
27 Share capital

At 31 December 2012 the authorized share capital comprised 530,445 ordinary shares
(2011: 530,445). Ordinary shares have a par value of MKD 1,000 (2011: MKD 1,000). All
issued shares are fully paid. '

The holders of ordinaty shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to
time and are entitled to one vote per share at shareholders’ meetings of the Bank. (2011: one
vote per share). All shares rank equally with regard to the Bank’s residual assets.

The preference shares are non-voting but have a priority over, a certain percentage of the

p g ) I

par value of the shares (dividends) and have a priority of collection in the case of the Bank’s
liquidation.

In Denars Number of issued shares
cumulative
Nominal value per preference Total subscribed
share ordinary shares shares capital
preference
ordinary shares not
shares for sale 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
At 1 January — fully paid 1,000 1,000 530,445 530,445 15542 15,542 545987 545987
At 31 December - fully paid 1,000 1,000 530,445 530,445 15,642 15542 545,987 545987
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Notes to the financial statements {continued)
As at and for the year ended 31 December 2012
(All amounts expressed in Denar thousand, unless otherwise stated)

Share capital (continued)
At 31 December 2012 and 2011, the following shareholders have ownership exceeding 5%
of the total issued shares with a voting right:

Share capital in Denar thousand Voting right
2012 2011 2012 2011
lvaylo Moutaftchiev, Republic of
Bulgaria 198,994 198,994 37.51 37.51
Tzeko Minev, Republic of Bulgaria 198,894 198,994 37.51 37.51
397,988 397,988 75.02 75.02
28 Commitments and contingencies

The Bank provides financial guarantees and letters of credit to guarantee the performance
of customers to third parties. These agreements have fixed limits and generally extend for a
period of up to one year. Expirations are not concentrated in any petiod.

The contractual amounts of commitments and contingent liabilities are set out in the
following table by category:

2012 2011

Guarantees
in MKD 223,589 258,800
in foreign currency 91,493 78,637
Letters of credit in foreign currency 30,701 15,175
345,783 352,612
Provision for impairment (Note 25) (1,830) (2,874)
343,953 349,738

Litigations

At 31 December 2012, legal proceedings raised against the Bank amount in total Denar 650
thousand. As at the Statement of financial position date, the Bank did not recognize
provision, since professional legal advice show that there is no possibility of significant
losses. In addition, various legal actions and claims may be asserted in the future against the
Bank from litigations and claims incident to the ordinary course of business. Related risks
have been analyzed as to likelihood of occurrence. Although the outcome of these matters
cannot always be ascertained with precision, the management of the Bank believes that no
material liabilities are likely to result.

Taxation

The tax authorities may at any time inspect the books and records up to 5 yeats subsequent
to the reported tax year, and may impose additional tax assessments and penalties. The
Bank's management is not aware of any circumstances, which may give rise to a potential
material liability in this respect.

Capital commitments
As at the Statement of financial position date, there ate no capital commitments that have
not been recognized in the financial reports.
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
As at and for the year ended 31 December 2012
(All amounts expressed in Denar thousand, unless otherwise stated)

29 Fiduciary activities

The Bank manages assets for the benefit of third parties mainly intended for concluding
loan agreements with legal entities. These assets are not owned by the Bank and have not
been recognized in the Statement of financial position. The Bank is not exposed to credit
risk from these placements. As at 31 December 2012, these assets amount to Denar 526,370
thousand (2011: Denar 523,843 thousand).

30 Pension plans

The Bank does not operate any defined contribution plans or share-based remuneration
options as at 31 December 2012 and 2011. The management believes that the present value
of the future obligations to employees with respect to retirement and other benefits and
awards are not material to these financial statements as at 31 December 2012 and 2011.

31 Related party transactions

According to the Banking Law, related parties are considered: persons with special rights
and responsibilities in the Bank and persons related to them; sharcholders with a qualified
contribution to the Bank (direct or indirect ownership of at least 5% of the total number of
shares, or voting right shares), affiliates and entities under common ownership, control and
management with the Bank, or whose activities the Bank has an ability to control.

The Bank grants loans, performs payment transfers and deposits funds of related
enterprises and financial institutions. It is the opinion of the Bank’s management that these
transactions are cartied out on normal commercial terms and conditions and during the
regular course of business activities.

As at 31 December 2012 and 2011, the balances and volume of transactions with related
entities and Key management personnel are as follows:

Key management

Other related parties personnel Total
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
Assets
Current accounts 39,515 32,813 - - 39,515 32,813
Other assets 189 35 38 13 227 48
Loans and other
receivables 639,967 327,880 21,361 17,390 661,328 345,270
679,671 360,728 21,399 17,403 701,070 378,131
Liabilities
Deposits 196,535 179,791 76,261 43,754 272,796 223,545
Subordinated liabilities 272,420 272,442 - - 272,420 272,442
Other liabilities 3,698 2,208 - - 3,698 2,208
472,653 454 441 76,261 43,754 548,914 498,195
Income
Interest income 19,284 38,559 2,280 1,760 21,564 40,319
Fee and commission
income 587 723 86 47 673 770
Other income 313 - 237 485 550 485
20,184 39,282 2,603 2,292 22,787 41,574
Expenses
Interest expenses 40,737 81,817 6,291 3,560 47,028 85,377
Fee and commission
expenses 27,344 26,973 - - 27,344 26,973
Other expenses 290 - 18,159 18,112 18,449 18,112
Employee benefits - - 48,021 44,290 48,021 44,290
68,371 108,790 72,471 65,962 140,842 174,752
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
As at and for the year ended 31 December 2012
(All amounts expressed in Denar thousand, unless otherwise stated)

32 Events after the reporting period

After 31 December 2012 — the reporting date until the approval of these financial
statements, there are no adjusting events reflected in the financial statements or events that
are materially significant for disclosure in these financial statements.
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